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June 6, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend sole source
agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have
income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming
homeless in Strafford County, by increasing the price limitation by $1,481,326 from
$1,481,326 to $2,962,652 effective July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2018. These agreements were originally
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late ltem A), September
7, 2016 (ltem#9), and September 21, 2016 (ltem#11) and were subsequently amended on
April 19, 2017 (Item#5A). 100% Federal Funds.

pijal

Current Increase/ New
Vendor Name Address Vendor # Budget (Decrease) Budget
Greater Nashua
. 615 Amherst St. 166574-
Councn.on Nashua, NH 03063 BOO1 $500,000 $500,000 | $1,000,000
Alcoholism
Hope on Haven | 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-
Hill, Inc. Rochester, NH 03867 |  B001 $482,119 | 3482119 | 3964,238
Families in 122 Market St. 157730-

Transition Manchester, NH 03101 B0OO1

$499,207 $499,207 $998,414

Total: $1,481,326 | $1,481,326 | $2,962,652

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.
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05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

. Activity Current Increase/

SFY Class Title Code Budget (Decrease) New Budget
Payments to

2017 502-500891 Providers 45057500 $1,481,326 $0 $1,481,326
Payments to

2018 502-500891 Providers 45057500 $0 $1,481,326 $1,481,326

Total: | $1,481,326 $1,481,326 $2,962,652

EXPLANATION

The purpose for this sole source amendment is to increase funding with no change to
the completion date in order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential
and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who
are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty
Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless. The original agreements were
sole source because these vendors have been identified as having the ability and capacity to
provide substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the
child(ren) to remain in the mother’s care.

The current contracts were extended by Amendment #1 on April 19,2017 (ltem # 5A)
from July 1, 2017 for an additional year to June 30, 2018 with no change to the price limitation
due to expected carry-over funding. At this time, the current vendors are expanding their
services to include increased outpatient services offered in order to support and reach more
clientele. The current scope of the contract allows for various levels of service and during the
beginning phases of the contracts, the vendors were beginning with base services with plans
to expand further. This additional funding will support this expansion, as well as allow for long
term sustainability planning and implementation to occur within the agencies.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain
with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory
purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be
cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
promote the independence of needy families through work and education. These vendors will
address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the children
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in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes
of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The vendors are
providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventing
them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to
provide for their families, while addressing participants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’s care. Services may include,
but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

¢ Anger management classes

o Coping skills

¢ Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

e Lactation services

e Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by these vendors. The original
agreements call for the provision of these services for one (1) year, with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory
vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The previous
amendment renewed the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the
contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF
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In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by: M&F

Jeffrey AlMeyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #2”) dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a
place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03063.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on September 7, 2016 (Item#9) and amended by an agreement
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation without extending the
completion date of the contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to
amend the contract as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $500,000 from
$500,000 to read: $1,000,000

CA/DHHS/100213
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health apd Human Services

AR =

Date Terry Smith—
Director

Contractor Name: €ctater Nashus, Comei! o Alechelsm

5L (/M/w\)’\/\/

Date Name—Fet e Hellehe— VY
Title: fresident and CEO

Acknowledgement:

State of Up Hmpsh=  County of Hlkhpe L on s/37 ,
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

WILLIAM C. MARTIN
Justice of the Peace - New Hampshire

-
wtz/ /M My Commission Expires November 4, 2020

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,

substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

fle [ AN, _~
Date l | ?:Irene %Ng{[/

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
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State of Nefo Hampshire

Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE.

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 16, 1983. I further certify that it is in good
étanding as far as thig office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the feeQ

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 14 day of April AD. 2016

Py Sden

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

: , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the eleced Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1am a duly elected Officer of _f> L:@QZQ A ZS{ EQ&( ygﬂ W s)s) éf@/@//g/”/
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on Yy 3/
Date

RESOLVED: That the }0/’ eSident <+ (£

{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate:

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

thekalsfdayof Mﬂq/ .20/7

(Date Contract Sigr)

4. Z %’Jéﬁ[ éi é/ﬁz iE[ is the duly elected ?f €S, den t ke CE ﬁ/
{Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency. ; i /ﬂ ; ) ,,

(Signature &f the Elfcted Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of /

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ 3 day of , 20 [ ,2 ,

, (Name of Electéd Officer of the Agency) \A} (ZMI\ /n W

V" (Notary Pablic/Justice of the Peace)
(NOTARY SEAL) N UMH///,,

: \\ 0 A //

Y

Commission Expires: L LM/ N _.. mumssm -.‘ z

= EXPIRES =

= JUNE4, W =

Z %);, o & £

%, SE

//

U TARY PO
’/////mmnm\\\

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of the Without Seal
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ACORD

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE {(MMWDDAYYYY)

3/8/2017

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: {f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. 1f SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER CONTACT
___ﬁKJmneﬂy_Gutekunsi
Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc. 'PHONE FAX &
11 Concord Street EMAIL Al Mok
Nashua NH 03064 ADDRESS] lsgujekuns @ea!onlmruhe com
__ INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# _4
| INSURER A Hanove( In
e o} INSURER syurance 0000000
INSURED HARHO INSURER 8 :Philadelphia Insurance Companies I
Hargor Hsomes, Inc INSURER € :Great Falls Insurance Co
45 High Street .
Nashua NH 03060 NSURERD:
| INSURERE :
INSURERF @

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2030495871

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED 8Y PAID CLAIMS.

1BMVA101342

INSR ADDL] | POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
L3R TYPE OF INSURANCE [w R|WVD | POLICY NUMBER ’(MMIDQNWY) (MMIDOIYYYn_l LIMITS
A GENERAL LIABILITY : Y ZBV9707147 . 711/2016 7112017 f EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
vy : | "DAMAGE 10 RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ' i PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $1,000,000
| | CLAIMS-MADE ﬂx _} OCCUR ' | | MED EXP (Any one persor) | 510,000
i ! | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY [ $1,000,000
X | Abuse \ | GENERAL AGGREGATE 53,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER | PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
CATE LMY : ! |
T poLcy; B X ioc | . , s
CONBINED SINGLI
A | AUTOMOBILE LABILITY l AHV9706003 7/1/12016 } 7/1/2017 (Ea accident) ELMIT | §1,000,000
i ANY AUTO | ‘ BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
t e
| ALL OWNED SCHEDULED i ; s
Aoe X | SCHED ‘ ! _BODILY INJURY (Per awdem)!L
" | NON-OWNED | | TPROPERTY DAMAGE s
X | mrepAuTOS X! AGTOS ] ; ¢ (Per accident)
i ‘ i : L . 1 $
A |x TumerEtaliae (X | oecur | UHV970913303 \ 712016 | 71112017 EACH OCCURRENGE $5.000,000
| EXCESS LIAB | CLAIMS-MADE i | AGGREGATE | $5,000,000
T i
(DED IX | RETENTION SO | ‘ ’ I 3
C | WORKERS COMPENSATION WCD0936040016 11/28/2016 | 11/26/2017 L TORYLMITS | TOET;' .
AND EMPLOYERS' LABILITY i i
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NiA, E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
i MBE. rd i
| ?Jf#%i&%ﬁn ?m? EXCLUDED ) v E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $1,000,000
[ éscmpnou OF OPERATIONS below l 1 ‘ ! | EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 1,000,000
A | professional Liability | L1VA966006 7/1/2016 £7/1/2017  $1,000,000 $3,000,000
8 | Management Liability PHSD1049831 7/1/2016 7/112017  1$1,000,000
A ICrime 7112016 CTHR0AT \5510 000

|

P i

Additional Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes, Inc. - FID# 020351932
Harbor Homes I, Inc.
Harbor Homes Ill, Inc.
Healthy at Homes, Inc. -FID# 043364080
Milford Regional Counsellng Service, Inc. -FID# 222512360
See Attached...

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Concord NH 03301

CANCELLATION
) SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of New Hampshire THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
Department of Health and Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
129 Pleasant St

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ot

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #:
; ®

ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 _of _f
WY NAMED INSURED

Eaton & Berube insurance Agency, Inc. Harbor Homes, Inc

45 High Street
POLICY NUMBER Nashua NH 03060
CARRIER NAIC CODE
EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS
THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Welcoming Light, Inc. -FID# 020481648

HH Ownership, Inc.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Mission Statement

To empower the chemically dependent person to
Take responsibility toward recovery through
Professional counseling in a caring environment
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MELANSONIgIZSES

ACCOUNTANTS « ALIDITORS

1G2 Perimeter Rood
Nashua. NH (33063
(603)882- 1Nt

melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:
Andover, MA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT Creenfield, MA

Manchester, NH
fHsworth, MP

To the Board of Directors of
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Nashua Council
on Alcoholism, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk



assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. as of
June 30, 2016, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc.’s fiscal year
June 30, 2015 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion
on those audited financial statements in our report dated December 10, 2015. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all materiai respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 2, 2016 on our consideration of the Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Greater Nashua
Council on Alcoholism’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Malamson Heath

November 2, 2016



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2016

{With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2015)

ASSETS
20186 2015
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 42,392 $ 231,875
Accounts receivable, net 523,281 333,635
Prepaid expenses 7,757 24 996
Total Current Assets 573,430 590,506
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 5,689,122 5,817,672
Reserve for replacements 26,473 14,461
Deferred compensation plan assets 6,000 -
Debt issuance costs, net 74,931 77,785
Total Assets $ 6,369,956 $ 6,500,424
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 48,800 $ 29,921
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 165,379 209,003
Due to related organizations 125,152 183,625
Line of credit 182,402 47,902
Current portion of bonds and mortgages payable 84,118 80,825
Total Current Liabilities 605,851 551,276
Long Term Liabilities:
Deferred compensation plan liability 6,000 -
Bonds payable, long term 3,744,156 3,824,539
Mortgages payable, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000
Total Long Term Liabilities 5,635,196 5,709,539
Total Liabilities 6,241,047 6,260,815
Unrestricted Net Assets 128,909 239,609
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 6,369,956 $ 6500424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Support and Revenue: 2016 2015
Support:
State of New Hampshire 3 32,500 $ 106,591
Federal grants 1,323,636 1,391,460
Other grants 109,348 -
Contributions 16,700 145,610
Revenue:
Client services:
Medicaid 1,142,951 841,728
Medicare - 3,206
Third party insurance 60,877 21,065
Client billings, net 46,522 38,634
Contracted services 177,633 7,367
Other income 1630 20,048
Interest income 48 20
Total Support and Revenue 2,911,845 2575729
Expenses:
Program services 2,602,708 2,079,135
General and administrative 385,731 406,278
Fundraising 34,106 29,983
Total Expenses 3,022,545 2,515,396
Change in Net Assets (110,700) 60,333
Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 239,609 179,276
Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year $ 128,909 $ 239,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Advertising
Accounting fees
Client services
Client transportation

Conferences and conventions

Contract services
Depreciation

Employee benefits

Food

Garbage and trash removal
Grant expenses
Information technology
Insurance

Interest

Joumnals and publications
Legal fees

Membership dues
Miscellaneous

Mortgage interest

Office supplies

Operating and maintenance

Operational supplies
Payroll taxes
Postage
Professional fees
Rent

Salaries and wages
Staff development
Staff expenses
Staff travel
Telephone

Utilities

Vehicle expenses

Total functional expenses

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Program General and
Services Administrative
S 2,985 $ 109
- 11,175
35,566 201
1,886 -
1,661 169
18,176 8,335
187,685 15,746
198,636 63,198
95,401 238
2217 103
1,492 10,204
18,262 891
- 1,564
6,251 507
1,283 310
4,069 5,357
151,280 7.444
22,318 802
83,364 3,908
49,456 794
113,798 26,958
1,849 151
- 1,744
69,577 -
1,427,102 221,122
11,158 -
709 982
7.328 465
6,770 230
64,832 2973
17,537 51
$ 2,602,708 $ 385731

$

2016 2015
Fundraising Total Totai
48 $ 3,142 S 1,770
- 11175 14,025
- 35,767 34,786
- 1,886 4,530
- 1,830 264
- 26511 48617
- 203,431 196,137
2,168 264,002 213,726
- 95,639 102,048
- 2.380 2,542
- - 73,980
33 11,729 6,214
- 19,153 20.223
- 1,564 1,676
- - 181
- 6.758 2,296
- 1,593 2167
- 9,426 17,084
- 158,724 176,544
- 23,120 10,623
- 87.272 56,852
- 50,250 29,273
2,350 143,106 98,069
- 2,000 529
588 2.332 8,920
- 69,577 17,673
28,919 1,677,143 1,275,512
- 11,158 4,557
- 1,691 515
- 7,793 2,121
- 7,000 3,774
- 67,805 67,750
- 17,588 20,418
34,106 $ 3,022,545 $ 2515396




GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2015)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assels $

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
(Increase) Decrease In;
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Change in reserve for replacements
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Change in due to related organizations
Proceeds from line of credit
Payments to line of credit
Principal payments on long term debt
Debt issuance costs, net
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Financing Activities

Net Increase {Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 3

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid b

Non-cash debt refinancing $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2016 2015
(110,700) $ 60333
203,431 198,278
(1,282) -
(189,646) (111,284)
17,239 (18.384)
18.878 (78,476)
(40,768) 91,631
(102,848) 142,098
(73,599) -
(12,012) (1.395)
(85.611) (1,395)
(58,473) 5,880
213,500 51,403
(79,000) (3,500)
(77.051) .
- (46,549)
(1,024) 7.234
(189,483) 147,937
231,875 83,938
42,392 $ 231875
160,288 $ 171573
- $ 3,930,523




GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Organization:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization providing recovery support services which are evidence-based,
gender-specific, and culturally competent. The programs include residential,
transitional housing, outpatient, intensive outpatient, family-based substance
abuse services, pregnant and parenting women and children, and offender
re-entry services initiative.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the
Organization used in preparing and presenting the accompanying financial
statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations
as required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organi-
zation is required to distinguish between contributions that increase
permanently restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
unrestricted net assets. It also requires recognition of contributions, including
contributed services, meeting certain criteria at fair values. These reporting
standards establish standards for financial statements of not-for-profit
organizations and require a Statement of Financial Position, a Statement of
Activities, a Statement of Functional Expenses, and a Statement of Cash
Flows.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment of
cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.



Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period
in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions
are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adeguacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization's management and
adjusted as required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt
expense). In determining the amount required in the allowance account for
the year ended June 30, 2016, management has taken into account a variety
of factors.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summa-
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the Statement
of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.



Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid
volunteers assisting the Organization in its programs. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities because the criteria
for recognition of such volunteer effort under generally accepted accounting
principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization's financial statements.

The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
income Tax) is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years
after they were filed.

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization had no interest or
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.

10



Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institu-
tions was $68,865 and $246,336 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The difference between the carrying amount and the bank balance represents
reconciling items such as deposits in transit and outstanding checks, which
have not been processed by the bank. The bank balance is categorized as
follows:

2016 2015
Insured by FDIC $ 112,961 $ 265,213
Total Bank Balance $ 112,961 $ 265213

Accounts Receivable, Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2016 consists of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net
Grants $ 359402 § - $ 359,402
Medicaid 103,548 (25,887) 77,661
Client 40,007 - 40,007
Third party insurance 5,000 - 5,000
Other 41,211 - 41,211
Total $ 549,168 $  (25887) § 523,281

11



5. Property, Equipment and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented

below:
2016 2015
Land $ 742,500 $ 742,500
Land improvements 1,743 1,743
Building 5,646,560 5,646,560
Building improvements 26,066 22,637
Computer equipment 11,524 11,276
Furniture and fixtures 39,628 34,511
Software 44,305 -
Vehicles 42,797 22,297
Subtotal 6,555,123 6,481,524
Less: accumulated depreciation (866,001) (663,852)
Total $ 5689122 $ 5817672

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 totaled

$203,431 and $196,137, respectively.

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Assets Years
Land improvements 15
Building and improvements 30
Equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 5-7
Software 3
Vehicles 5

6. Reserve for Replacements:

Reserve for replacements consists of funds required to be used for the
replacement of property, with prior approval by the New Hampshire Housing

Finance Authority.

12



Accrued Expenses and QOther Liabilities:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following:

2016 2015
Accrued payroll and related liabilities $ 155,716 $ 203,828
Accrued interest 5175 5175
HSA liability 4,488 -
Total $ 165,379 $ 209,003

Due to Related Organizations:

Due to related organizations represents short-term liabilities due to related
entities whereby common control is shared with the same Board of Directors.
The related organizations and their balances at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

016 2015
Current;
Harbor Homes, Inc. $ 88464 $ 56,975
Healthy at Home, Inc. 14,210 96,280
Milford Regional Counseling Services 406 3,863
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force 22,072 26,507
Total $ 125152 § 183,625

Line of Credit:

At June 30, 2016, the Organization had $250,000 of credit available from
Merrimack County Savings Bank due September 11, 2016, secured by all
assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest
payments to Merrimack County Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2016, the credit
line had an outstanding balance of $182,402 at an interest rate of 4.50%.

13



10. Bonds Pavyable:

Bonds payable as of June 30, 2016 were as follows:

$3,963,900 in New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority bonds, dated September 15, 2014, due in
monthly installments of $19,635, including principal and
interest at 4.00%, maturing in 2042, secured by real

property, guaranteed by Harbor Homes, Inc. $ 3,828,314

Total 3,828,314
Less amount due within one year (84,118)
Long term debt, net of current portion $ 3,744,196

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year Amount
2017 $ 84,118
2018 87,594
2019 91,163
2020 94,490
2021 97,727
Thereafter 3,373,222
Total $ 3,828,314

11. Mortgages Payable, Deferred:

The Organization received special financing as partial funding for a new
building. These notes are interest free for thirty years with principal payments
calculated annually at the discretion of the lender. Certain covenants apply
related to eligibility and use of the mortgaged property. The balance of these
notes at June 30, 2016 is as follows:

¢ Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston - $385,000
Affordable Housing Program
» New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority $1,500,000

14



12.

13.

14.

15.

Transactions with Related Parties:

The Organization offers counseling services to the clients of related organiza-
tions. These services are provided whenever requested.

The Organization receives janitorial and maintenance services performed by
clients of Harbor Homes, Inc., a related organization. The Organization also
receives payroll services from the related organization.

The Organization rents space from Harbor Homes, Inc., a related organiza-
tion. Rent expense for the year under this agreement was approximately
$17,000.

The Organization is considered a commonly controlled organization with
several related entities by way of its common board of directors. However,
management feels that the principal prerequisites for preparing combined
financial statements are not met, and therefore more meaningful separate
statements have been prepared.

Net Assets Released from Restriction:

There were no restricted net assets during the year ended June 30, 2016
and, as a result, no net assets were released from restrictions.

Retirement Plan:

After one year of continuous service with the Organization, employees may
contribute a portion of their wages to a Section 403(b) retirement plan. The
Organization matches a percentage of the employee contribution based
on years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the Organization for
the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $40,736 and $39,674,
respectively.

Concentration of Risk:

A material part of the Organization’s revenue is dependent upon support
from the State of New Hampshire and Medicaid, the loss of which would
have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the year ended
June 30, 2016, the State of New Hampshire accounted for 44% and Medicaid
accounted for 39% of total revenues.

15



16.

Fair Value Measurements:

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies whenever
other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at their
fair market value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value in any
new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measurements, fair value refers to the
price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the principle that fair
value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Organization categorizes its fair value
estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of
price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair vaiue.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at
the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in
Level 1 are highly liquid instruments with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs
are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability being valued; and

e Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs.

16



17.

The estimated fair value of the Organization’s financial instruments is

presented in the following table:

Carrying

Value Fair Value Level One Level Two Level Three
Line of credit $ 182,402 § 182,402 $ - 3 182,402 § -
Bonds payable 3,828,314 3,828,314 - 3,828,314 -
Mortgages
payable, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000 - 1,885,000 -
Due to related
organizations 125,152 125,152 - - 125,152
Total liabilities $ 6020868 % 6020868 $ - $ 5895716 $ 125152

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those financial instruments.

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant Unobservable inputs

Level Three

Beginning balance June 30, 2015

Advances
Reductions

Ending balance June 30, 2016

Subsequent Events:

Due to related
organization

183,625
298,021

(356.494)
125,152

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2016 through November 2,
2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have
been evaluated by management for disclosure. Management has determined
that there were no material events that would require disclosure in the

Organization's financial statements through this date.
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present
2002-Present
1597.Present
1995-Preseat
1995-Present
1982-Present

2003-2006

1980 - 1982

1979 - 1980

1978 - 1979

1976

19711976

Consultant
Providing

Mu::mo.sonmmmvmm

President & CEQ, Greater Nashua Councll on Aleshaliam, Ine./ Keystone Nashos, NH
President & CEO, Heelthy At Home, Ine., Nashus, NH b

Preddent & CEQ, Miford Reglonal Counssling Services, Inc.,, Milford, NH

Prestdent & CEQ, Welecoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NE

Presldent & CEO, Hurbor Homes, Inc,, Naghus, NH
MWHWMW&&WW@MMM
Living) cresting snd providing residentis] and supportive services, mental health care,

health varo, subatance use disorder treatment and prevention services, supported employment and
workforce training, snd in-home health care to individuala and familiss who are

development, professional
horneloss, living with dissbilities, end/ar are underserved/members of vulnembls populations, Responsitis
for initiztion, development, end oversight of more than 80 programs comprising & $22,000,000 opersting
budget; proposal development regulting in mare than $15,000,000 in grants annually; overaight of 850+
management and direct care professionsls.

consultstion snd fechnical asaisiance throughout the State to ald service and mental healih

Real Estats Broker, LeVauxx Realty, Cambridge, MA
Suocessful sslos snd property management specialist.

Ciinical Coerdinator, Task Orisnted Communities, Waltham, MA

Estsblished and provided comprebensive rebabilitation servioes to 70 individuals with
ments] snd/or developmental disebilities. Hired, dircotly supervised, and trained & full-time staff of 20
residentia] coordinators. Developed oommumity residences for the above cliends in three Boston scburbs.
Provided emergenoy cousultation on & 24-hour basls to staff dealing with crisis managament in six gronp
homes xad one sheltered workshop, Adnﬂdmaﬁwmmmhchwdmﬂmwdmgmt,
qulity sssursnce, and other socountubility to stats enthodities.

Faculty, Middlesex Communjty Callege, Bedford, MA
Instractor for en introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Wark Department.

mmw«wmnm,mmmmm&mtcmmama

Functionsd uoondheomzdandcb:t‘eﬂﬂd for eight interdiscipRnary meambers,
[ '] supervisar teamy

and implemented & sixanonth residential program for Individuals sffiicted with recrering taberculosis and

slcohokism. Provided group and individual therspy, relaxation taining.

Sotial Worker, Massachusstts Xnstitate of Technology, Out-Putient Psychiatry, Cambridgs, MA
Boployed in fhil-time syrymex position providing oat patient counseling to individusls and groops of the

MIT cornomuity.

Program Cownsclor/Supervisor, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, MIT/Wellesley College
Mnji ummmﬁﬂummdmwf:&‘:ﬂmﬂmmwm@mm
of tuioting staff, teaching, conducting evalustive research for program polioy development.
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EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE 3
1975-1977  Simmons Collage School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambddge-Somervilie

OomnnizyMnnhIHellﬂanmm,m

1971-1975  Clark University, Worcester, MA. Roceived Bachalor of Arts Dogroe in Prychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estato Broker — Massachusstts

1589 Acedemy of Certified Social Warkers - NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Socia! Worker - Massachusetts

1954 State of New Hampahire Certified Clinica? Social Worker, MA LICSW
PLACEMENTS

1976 -1977  Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambeidge, MA

Individual, group, and family counsoling to hospitalizad patients.

1975-1976  Massachusetis Fnstituto of Technology, Soclal Service Depariment, Cambridge, MA

Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 -1984  Antioch/New Bngland Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Koene, NH
1983 - 1584  Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Naskma, NH -

19901991 Rivier College, Depariment of Pgychology, Nasima, NH

1978-1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Wock Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

l:'I " m s p N

High Schodl Valodictorian Award

National Ingtitute of Mental Health Traincaship in Social Wark

University of New Hampehire Commumity Developrment 2003 Comemumnity Leader of the Year
NAMINH 2007 Annual Awsnd for Systems Change

Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007

The Watter 3. Dunfoy Corporste Fund Award for Excellenco in Non Profit Management 2009
NE Magsvine Business Excellence Award 2010

Nasima Telograph Humanitarisn of the Year Award 2015

Licoe! W. Johnson Housing Award, Champion of Human Rights 2015

MEMBERSHIPS

4% g o uwwle

Menbex of the Department of Veterans Affairs Advisory Committee on Homeless Veatersns

Board Member, Community Health Access Network (CHAN)

Natjonal Association of Social Waorkers

Former member of the National Healthcere far the Homeless Board of Directars

Farmer Chair, Govamor®s State Interagency Council on Homelessneas/New Hampehire Polioy Acadenty
Former Chair, Grexter Naghtia Continuum of Care

Formeée Boerd Member, New Futures, Concord, NH



Annefle Escalante, MSW, LADC
Evening Phone 603-649-3495
29 Halg Street Day phone: 603-847-2224
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Manchester, NH03102  E-mall preferido@comcost.net

To locate a position whera | can uiilize my skills and experience to develop programs
and services for the economicaly disadvantaged.

Undergraduale Degree: Springfield College, BA Major: Human Services
Graduate Degres: Unlvenily of New Hompshire, MSW Mdjor: Social Woark
Curanily working towards LICSW
licensed Alcohal Dtug Counselor (LADC) State of New Hampshire
: SKIll Sefs:

=« Substance Apuse e Budget Development

e HIV/AIDS * Grant wWilting/Report Management

¢ Domeslic Violence/ Rape Crish s Program Planning and Evaluation

s« Ouireach to Sex Workers ¢ Regulatory Compllance

» Delodfication Programs » Polcy and Procedurs Development

s Comrectional institutions s Supervisory Bxperience

« Cuiturally Diverse Populations ¢ Program Development

s Federally Funded Programs s Group, Family and Individuel Courseling

« Gender Specific Programming for ¢ Community Netwarking

Women e VYoluniger Coordinalion
7/09-Prasent: Vice President

€l Keystone Hall, Noshua, NH
In this position, my responsibliifles Include:

.« o 069

Oversight of all clinfcal and administration programs and personnel.

Develop and supervise provisions of all clinical records and programs offered by the
Agency.

Works In conjunciion with CEQ to establish goals and plans tor long-term financial and
clinlcal success of the Agency.

Manage overdl! budgets, funding sources and accounting to ensure integrty and
compliance with regulations.

Malntain personne) records.

Grant and proposal witting.

Maintaln compliance with federal, state, and focal regulations,

Screen, fraln, and superyise existing and new staf! to develop and buid on effeclive
organization.

Parform staif job performance evaluations.

8uild and maintain etfective relationships with govemment agencies, service providers,
communlly partners, volunteers, and philanthropic organizations.

Mdintain a high level of protessional and ethicol stondaords.

Any and all other dutles as assigned by the CEO.




1172007-7/0%: ~ Adminlsiralor of Women Offénders and Famlly Services ~——  — —— —

New Hompshire Department of Corections-Commissioner's Offica, Concord, NH.
In this position, my responsibiiities included:

Responsible for programming and services for women offenders in the state adult
corectional system including prokation, parole, and state comectional facilities.
Established and Implemented o Co-Occuming progrom {PTSD and Substance Abuse)
for female olfenders at the New Hampshire State Prison for Women,

Establishing goals and objectives for siate corectional systems within the framawork
of the department's philosophy, Including planning. organidng, implementing,
direcfing and monitoring state genderresponsive programs and services, os well as
developlng policies, procedures, and standards for the provision of such programs
and services.

Write standards for, execule, ond monitor all non-clinical contracts with service
providers who work exclusivety with women offenders.

Review gnd provide feedback on an ongoing basis on ali clinical confracts and
services for women offenders regarding consistency with contract language and
gendervesponsive prnciples.

Establish and coordinate partnerships, and malntaln working relationships within the
depariment of health and human services, with other govemment agencies, with
communtties, and with community-based organizations, volunieers, advocacy
groups, the academic communily, and olher external stakeholders.

Developed and implementad a Trouma Tralning for the New Hampshire Department
ol Comreclions Academy, Cuirently working on Travma Training for the New
Hampshlre Pollca Acadeny,

Provide technlical assistance 1o ihe women's taclity warden and fleld monagers
regarding issues related to women offenders and gender-responsive prograrms,
services, and praclices.

Provide input regarding necessary data collection and evaluation 1o measure
effective progromming and supervision of women offenders.

Consuit with and provide Input with other directors regarding appropriate levels of
staffing In both the field ond institulions responsible for the management of women
olfenders.

Confer with and make recommendations ta the commissioner regarding women
offender supervision and services, oversee the plonning, development, and
implementation of fraining guldelines for stalf working with women offenders, ond
recommend changes in duties assigned to casework and securty staff who work with
women offenders.

Act as ¢ resource in cases of staff sexual misconduct involving women offenders and
provide input Into personne! actions for addressing misconduct Involving staff who
work with women offenders and misconduct involving women offenders.

Prepare budget recommendations regarding women otfenders’ program services
consistant with the departmsntal budgsl cycle. Engage Inh budget formation, grant
applications, and resource allocation activities related 1o women offenders as
assigned.

Acigos ialson o the interagency coordinating council for women offenders and the
department of corecilons.

200%; Springfield College Adjunct Professor
In this per dlem pasitlon. my responsibilities Include:

Yeaching graduate and undergraduate course.

Courses Include Family Therapy and Culiural Diverslty, Addiction Studies and Mentol
Hedlth Practicum.

Serving as a fleld advisor for studenls.



H/2008-current, Therapist
RTT Associates-Manchester, NH
In this per diem position, my resporsiblilies Include:

+ Provide Indlvidual counseling for men and women to deal with substance abuse and
menta health issues weekly using Motivational Interviewing, Behavioral Therapy and
Cognifive Behavioral Therapy.

Provide LADC evaluations,

Provide assassments.

Provide recommendations 10 courts and other refernals sourcas and coordinale care
with mental health providers,

5/1979-present: Impalred Driver intervention Program Instructor
Serenity Place, Manchester, NH
In this per diem position, my responsibilities Include:
«__Provide 20 hours of alcohol and other drug educalion classes to mandated clients for
first offense Driving While Intoxicated {DWi},
*__Provide Spanish speaking classes.
s Provide exit Intervlews to determine license eligibliity.

9/2005-11/2007: Cormeclional Counselar/Case Manager-Changed fo Program Coordinator

New Hampshire Department of Comections, Gotisiown, NH,

In colloborotion with other management siaff, my Job responsibiiities Include creation

and implementation of a gender specific frauma informed programs for fernale

offtenders. My ofher job responsibiiities include:

+ Evdlugte substance abusa program for successtul outcomes and to ensure best
practice crteria are met.

» Supervise substance abuse programs for female offenders at NH State Prson for

_Women and Shea Fam Transitional Housing Unit,

Supervision of Counselor/Case Managers af the Women's Prison and Shea Farm
Responsibliity for Program Development and Assessment,

Supervision of MSW Intems and volunieers.

Responsihie tor assuring substance gbuse programs for lemcle offenders are in
compiance with ACA guidelines.

« Provide Intake, assessments, LADC evaluations, freatment recommendations,
consuitation and coordinate care with mentdd heaith, ciassificolion, Parole and
Probation, and community based orgonizations.

. Coordinate eniry Into treaiment programs for female offenders In the community.

» Counsel lnmates on various persona! Issves in regard to thelr fransifion and continued
adjustiment into the community, as well as adjustment within the conectional system.

v Provide clinlcal services to inmates with substance abuse and mental heaith
disorders.

s Provide crisls counseling and conflict resolution.

s Provide groups such as Anger Management and Victm Impact for female offenden.

+ _Provide transiation for Spanish speaking cilents,

5/2004-9/2005:  Soclal Worker/Youth Counselor- Clity of Manchaster Youth Services,
Manchester, NH
« FProvided crlsis counseling to juvenile oftendars and thelr famillies in ithe Monchester
areaq.
¢ Olrected youth tdward productive behavior away from dellnquency.
¢+ Provided Group, individual counseling and familly therapy. {Motivational Interviewing
ond Cognitive Behavioral Therapy).
Substance Abuse individual counseling.
Perforrn CHINS petitions.
Admisslon/dlischarge planning ond community networking working with diverse



services within the community.

Provide a foursesslon self-assessment of the use and misuse of alcohol/drug ecourt

marxiated for thosa clients under 21 yis of age).
Provide transiation for Spanish speaking clients.

6/2000-5/2004:  Program Monitor- New Hampshire Housing Finance Authorily, Bediord, NH.

® € 9 & &

Monltored low- Income residents in the State of New Hampshire for the Section 8
Program.

Assessed and pertormed Income changes for porficipants in the Section8 Program,
home ownership and Famlly Self Sutficiency programs.

Performed home Inspections for program participants yearly to make surs thelr rental
properties were up to HUD and city codes.

Admission/discharge planning and community networking.

Provided conflict resolution with program participants and landfords,

Made referrals to suppartive services.

Provided assistance in locating affardable housing.

Provide transiation services for Sponish speaking tenants, landlords and stalt
mernbars.

9/1999-6/2000: Comrectional Counselor/Case Manager-, New Hampshire Deparment of
Corrections, Laconia, NH,

Provided clinical services 1o inmates with substance abuse disorders,

Group ond individual counseling pertaining to substance abuse and mental health
disorders.

Provided case management services.

Counseled Inmates on varicus personal Issues In regard io thelr transition and
continued adjustment into the community and within the corections sysiem,
Provide crisls counseling and confiict resolufion.

Oftered educotional lectures on a serles of different topics for inmates.
Coordinated individual service plans, preTelease plans and assessments for
treatment to be utilized by the Probation/Parole Olficers

Provided translation services for Spanish speaking inmates and staff members.

11/1997-9/1999: Oufreach Program Coordinalor-New Hompshire AIDS foundation,
Manchester, NH.

*

Program planning, devslopment and implementation of a new drop-in center for
Intravenous substance abusers/sex workers geored towards accessing appropriate
substance abuse treatment and prevention of HIV In Manchester, New Hampshire.
Budget planning and grant wiiting.

Responsible for evaluation of the program’s affecliveness through management of o
‘data base of statistics and monitoring of program outcomes.

Policy and procedure deveiopment,

Responsible for assuring regulatory complionce with State of NH guidelines for the
funding received.

Provided supervision of all staff and volunteers at the Pine Stree! Prevention Cenfer.
Coordinated servicas with community providers in the subsiance abuse field to
ensure appropriate tfreatment services for clients,

Pravided short term clinlcal services to clients with substance cbuse dlscnders
Provide ciisis counseling ond confiict resolution,

Provided sireet outreach to substance abusers and sax workers.

Provided oufraach with the Manchaester Heclth Deportment's Moble Van lwice a
week.

Provided truns!cﬂon services for Spanish speaking cllents,



7/1996-11/1997:  Youth Outreach Counselor- Cily of Manchester Office of Youth Services,

Manc

* e & & o u

h

aster, NH.

Provided streetf outreach to youth at risk.

Provided refervals and mentoring.

Provided short term clinlcal services to cliants with substance gbuse dlsorders.
Coordinated crisls Intervention for ot risk glients,

Provide crisls counseling and conflict resolution,

Provided transiation services for Sponish spaaking clients.

4/1994-7/1996:  Substance Abuse Counselor- Providence Hospital, Holyoke, MA.
[

Coordinated services with communily providers in the substance abuse field 1o
ensure appropriate treatment services for clients,

Provided clinical services, group and Individual counseling to clients with substance
abuse disorders.

Responsible for coordination of case management services.

Completed Intake and relerrals for efigible cllents.

faclitated Twelve-Step Groups.

Faclitated Spanish Speaking Support Groups.

Coordinated Methadone Intakes and Insurance biiiing.

Provided tfransiation services for Sponish speaking cllents

111993-4/1995:  Bridge Team Leader- AIDS Aliies, Sprngfleld, MA,
In this part time pasttlon, | was responsible for :

v

Program development ond planning of a drop In center for intravenous subsiance
abusens/sex workers gearad fowards accessing cppropriaie substance abuse
treatment and prevention of HIV in Springfleld Massachusetts,

Responsible for policy and procedure development,

Responsible for assuring regulalory compliance with the Springfield Health
Department funding guidelines.

Evaluated and supervised all staft and volunteers at the Drop in Centler,
Coordinated services with community providers In the substonce abuse figld 1o
ensure appropriate freatment servicas for clients.

Provided clinlcal services fo cllents with substance abuse disorders including
counseling and case management/advocacy.

Provided clothing and created a safe place for sex workers and Infravenous drug
abusers.

Provided transiafion services for Spanish speaking clients.

2/1990-6/1994: Counselor Advocate-YWCA, Springileld, MA.

Provided clinlcal services to clients affected by domaestic violence,

Provided twenty-lour hour hotline coverage for abuse and sexual assauit victims.
Provided Legal advocacy,

Coordinated services with community providers to ensure approprate servicas for
clents.

Faciftated support groups for Spanish speaking cllents,

Provided HIV/AIDS education to residents of the shelter.

Responsibie for assisting with the collection of biling data and demographic and
service siatistics.

Provided substance abuse counseling, rape crisls counssling ond support groups to
the Lating community,

Provided translation services for Spanish speaking chents.



& Moanchester Cultural Diversity Task force
& Lalinos Unidos ot NH Advisory Board

;gwmﬁ 1. lorSeog Bureau of Programs/NH DOC

2. Ully Ramos-Spooner Director of Operations/GMAP
3. Edda Cantor Execulive Director/Leadership NH

2004-2008
2005-current




FROFILE

' Patricia A, Robitsille, CPA N

¢ 1B years expetience in sccounting/finandal @ ‘Tmining expetience

® Management experience ¢ Knowledge of multiple computer programs
¢ Divenified industry exposure e  Excellent client rapport

o Counselor and mentor & ‘Tax preparation experience
PROFESSIONAL EXPERTENCE

June 2009 - Present Vice President of Finance Harbor Homes, Inc.

I.’khlht..l.

Responsible for the finances of 9 zelated non-profit eatitics with revenues in excess §22M

Directly respansible for budgeting, planning, cash management, grants and contracts falling
under the buriness/2ccounting office

Reviews and anslyzes the monthly, quartedy and anmal financial seports

Analyzes results of cash flows, budget expenditurcs and grant restrictions

Assists the President/CEO with finencial planaing and capital projects

Responsible for the annmal financial and retirement sudits of all related entities

Reviews Federal 990 tax returns and state retumns

Set up web based electranic timesheets

Implemented the conversion and instsllation of accouating snd HR software

Prepates and reviews 941 quartedy returns, state unemployment returns

Ovetsces worket’s compensation renewals, sudit preparations, safety controls

Responsible for coordinating, financing of two $6M capital construction

Jan. 2007 -~ Oct. 2008  .Andift Mansager Emst Young LLP, Manchester, NH

L 4

Managed sudits of private corporstions with revenues up to $200 million
Aszisted 23 manager of audits for public cotporations with revenues up to $400 millice
Reviewed and aasisted preparation of financiel statements, 10Q quarteddy filings 20d 10K anonal

filings
Anslyzed and reviewed internal control under Section 404 of the Sathanes Oxley Act

Prepared management comments in conjunction with materdal weaknesa ot significant
teficienci

Jun. 1997 ~Ja0. 2007  Audit Supervisar Melaason Heath & Company, P.C., Nashma, NH

Supervise/train varicus teamsy for commercial, not-for-profit, and enunicipal andits and sgreed
upan procedures
Audit setvices include balance sheet reconcilistion inclnding iaventory contrel

Preparation and presentation of financial statements
Preparation of mansgement comment Ietters for internal quality improvement
Assist clients with &ll aspects of accounting



‘e Consulting services to dlients including rorxitd

profits

4. Preparation of budgets and cash forecasti ’%ﬁv

*  Extensive corporate tax preparation experience /

1993 - 1997 Accounting/Offfice Mansger
s Management of a five-person staff
»  Oversew accounts receivable, sccounts payable and general ledger reconciliation
= Responsible for inventory management, preparation fot year-cod audit and collabotation with
external suditors
x Prepared monthly jaternal financial statements
a Responsible for payroll including quartedies and year-end reporting

Company, Nashus, NH

EDUCATION

1988-1991 Rivier College, Nasthua, NH — Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Flampshire
Member of the New Hampshire Society of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the Ametican Institute of Certified Public Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE
Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Tirisl balance software, QuickBooks,

Peachtree, T-Value, vatious suditing softwate programs, Sage Non-profit Accounting software, Sage
MAS 90 accousting software.




CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Peter Kelleher President & CEO $188,279 2% $3,765

Annette Escalante VP of Operations $115,000 6% $6,900

Patricia Robitaille VP of Finance $130,000 2% $2,600
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

February 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (ltem #9), and September 21,
2016 (tem #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current
Budget
Greater Nashua Council on 615 Amherst St. 166574-B001 $500,000
Alcoholism Nashua, NH 03063
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-B001 $482,119
Rochester, NH 03867
Families in Transition 122 Market St. 157730-B001 $499,207
Manchester, NH 03101
Total: | $1,481,326

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326
Total: $1,481,326
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been

/



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Councit
Page 2 of 3

identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. These amendments
are no additional cost, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment. However, these
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely to seek help
due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could result in separation from their
children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniguely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide
for their families, while addressing participants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health ilinesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic
biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across all services and levels of care. All services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother's care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

o Communication classes

e Anger management classes

» Coping skills

o Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

¢ Lactation services

e Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for one (1) year, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, based upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 of 3

Executive Council. This amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1)
additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

/’ T ﬁZf’
! yeou ) e
~ Terry R. Sntith

Director
/
,
MW
Approved by:
rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS -~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as *Amendment #17) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
“State" or "Department”) and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as

"the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua,
NH 03063.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 7, 2016 (#9), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

l. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

jﬁ/j/lc’ﬂ ?‘720/ 7 ? | o
Date Torry 5 F—
Director

Contractor Name: re-kr Neshoa Guniil en Meshalisim

2/22/17 [M/)ﬂ/

Date Name: fete- Kelloho
Title: frosident £ (£7c
Acknowledg nt: i | /
State of e”\?ﬂ , County of on < AL [[ rj

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the gerson identified abdve, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is sighed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Mg

X

»

)

</ RIS
////O

.......

D TARY PN
\.\\
Tty

%,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF, THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date | | Name: Wyasm ]\ 1[zd
Title: j,\ “\m&
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and

Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213



®

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-300-7352964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director ~
B T ~4
August 5, 286~ MAUDTOVRD
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan rly
and the Honorable Executive Council Date }//C
State House o ) 'C/' ’
Concord, NH 03301 AL S
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Vendor #166574-B001), 615 Amherst
Street, Nashua, NH 030683 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/for parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County
in an amount not to exceed $500,000, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title | Activity Codej; Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $500,000
Total: $500,000
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in
the mother’'s care. The Department will request Governor and Executive Council approval of
the other agreement once received from the vendor.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use disorder treatment services;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 2 of 3

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

, TANF funds were, transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State. When the Hope on Haven Hill program opens its doors it will allow
mothers to remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder.
The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work, and education. Hope
on Haven Hill will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate
care for the children in residence. -The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our
community. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and removing
barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger
community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

¢ Anger management classes

o Coping skills

e Childbirth education classes

¢ Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services

o Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’'s care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 of 3

pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five (5§) and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, preghant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

. Smith
Director

Approved by: M =

ffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission 1s to join communities and families
‘m onrniidine annartunities fr citizens to achreve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

Disorders (SS-2017-DFA-01-Opend-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
_ Executive Council for approval. Any mformatlpn that is private, conﬁdentlal or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract,

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism. ~ 615 Ambherst Street
Nashua, NH 03063

1.5 Contractor Phone ' 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95-45-450010-6146

(603) 305-6586 June 30,2017 $500,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Eric D. Borrin, Director 603-271-9558

1.11 Contragtor-Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

loter tellenes

/ /) | [/\\/ Prosident and (EC

1.13 Acknowledgement: Staté of N , County of ((_H Hbéj i \[7 h

rd
On J\,} {\L &? (f Aib , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person 1dent1ﬁed\m\5“lomd 1 12 or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s’he exccutqsk thls HQFE tEe capacity
indicated in block 1.12, PRk 0%,

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace o.).!.a.amh

[Seal] NH\CX ﬁ ”\@0 ﬁdﬁ%ﬁ

1.13.2 Name and Title o %ary or Justlce of the Peace

.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1
M/ Date: %/3//1‘ l ﬁ""jg (ﬁ Dm.zmbf;q"

1.14 State A,

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Persondel (if applicdble)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

B‘Um AL higp o Mase, 9/ rc;//u

1.18 Approval By the GOVTZM Executive founci, {if appllcable)‘ /

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,

‘the Contracting-Officer’s decision shall befinal for the State. .

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
{“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials U/ ‘
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposés to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fumish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hawmpshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelesshess Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.

‘Scope of Services~ - T

Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent is employed in which case services can be extended,;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health insurance.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment as well as
either residential housing, supportive housing, and/or housing stabilization services
including wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
who:

1.3.1.  Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or incre_ase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with program processes, service provision, and overall program
outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DFA to ensure desired program
benchmarks are achieved timely.

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

§85-2017-DF A-02-Opend-01

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials {
Page 10of § Date (((



a3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Service
OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.9.

1.8.1. Requirements govermning human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department’s approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or comparable

system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
1.10.1.4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenrollment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client’s progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have

access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as available.
2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.
2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials _'u/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

ability to provide for their famlhes and address pregnant and parentmg women'’s
supstance usedisorders. -~ - —

24. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:
2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.43. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in térgeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:
2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.45.3. Social service agencies.
2.45.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the ciients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaiuation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-2 1-Addiction-

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential treatment facility
pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. OQutpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up to four
(4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite substance use
disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may include, but is not
limited to, apartments within an apartment complex, group housing, or
shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing services shall be limited to
4 months based off the TANF regulations around non assistance categories.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatment services.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials k/ -
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Exhibit A

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.71.
2.7.2.
2.7.3.
2.74.
2.7.5.

Housing.

Food.

Clothing.

Diapers.

Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment services, as

appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1..

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

2.84.

2.8.5.

Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden .
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.full.pdf .

Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to for children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

Supports for before and after school care are available for school age

- children.

Arrangements are in place that allows children to continue attending school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall.

2.9.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services shall include, but are not limited to;
2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;
2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;
2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials Q/
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OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
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Exhibit A
2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess and
- - 77 ‘respond. o oo T T
2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV and Tuberculosis (TB), which
shall include, but not be limited to:
2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.
2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.
2.9.2.4, Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:

2.10.

211,

2.12.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials QY/ ]
$5-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01 ( (J
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2.8.3.1. Aunique patient identifier.

2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.

2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.

2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall;

2.10.1.
2.10.2.

2.10.3.

Asses clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for discharging
clients from services being provided under this contract.

The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2111,

Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is

. less frequent.

2.11.2.

2113

Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

The Contractor shall ensure treatmenit plans include but are not limited to:

2.12.1.

A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.
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Exhibit A

2.13.

214,

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4 1. Assistance with enroliment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5, Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4 8. Parenting skilis classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall include medical and behavioral health
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice in
accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules, Part
He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation. These should include,
but are not limited to:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials __(‘
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2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcoho! and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board
- —of Mental Health Lieensed-Clinieian. = — - -

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP) through
staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health

2.16.

Epidemiologist in order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of social determinants of health and other public health and community
health indicators.

The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or
2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department; and
2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

Greater Nashua Cauncil an Alcoholism Exhibit A Cantractar Initials
§8-2017-DF A-02-Opend-01

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge based on policies and process approved by the Department
within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is maintained in a
state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2.Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4.Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

Page 7 of 9 Date
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Exhibit A

2.17.4. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant CPR. (Spell out the CPR acronym)
2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

2.18. The Contractor shall ensure substance use disorder treatment services in this
agreement continue beyond the contract end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.18.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible services. '

2.18.3. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from sources the
contractor may identify.

2.18.4. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has in
place for the population at need.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure Individual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for all
program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor shall
ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program andf/or community
partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

2.20. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

2.21. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:

S58-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01

Greater Nashua Councii on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials QV ’

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.
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31 2 Brief narrative identifying barrlers experlenced when provudlng services in

—thepreviousmonth.- -—— : - T e

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the individuals on the waiting list described in
Section 2.4.3 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per week.

The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of program participants, including chiidren,
create an Individual Service Plan (ISP), as described in Section 2.17 that includes a
housing stability plan. The following may also be part of the ISP:

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 30 women and their
children in the Greater Nashua, NH region.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Section 2.8.2, 2.15.1 and
2.15.5 to the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

54. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting fist described in Section 2.4.3 to
the Department once every two (2) months.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.15.5 to
the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings
described in Section 2.15.5 to the Department no later than 30 days after the
contract effective date.

5.7. The Contractor shali provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.16.1 to the
Department no later than December 30, 2016.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor initials Wl/
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

JFinancial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Afinal payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or.in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism. Exhibit B Contractor Initials J
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department. .

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shali be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, orat a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Specia! Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Defauit hereunder. When the Contractor is
- ——permitted-to-determine the-eligibility of-individuals for-services, the Contractor agreesto .
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ali costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. ‘

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records or each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
. agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of

Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non

Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,

Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQ standards) as

they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, itis
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

! [/
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descnptlon of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all oniginal materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regutations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees

—- - with-fewer than-50 empleyees,regardless of the-amount-of the award, the recipient will provide an__
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resuiting agency guidance, national arigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain heaith care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shali do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C ~ Special Provisions Contractor !nitials XV/
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

-FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPQOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and poficies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compitation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

— 4. —Gubparagraph -4-of the-Generat Provisions of this contract; Conditional Nature of Agreement,-is -

replaced as follows:

4.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whale or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2
10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

CU/DHHS/110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.8.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pieasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2, Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant -
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Natice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

~4.6. - Taking-one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under ...
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1.

1.6.2.

Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or loca! health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

CU/DHHS/110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Famifies under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Biock Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. I any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wili be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Formto
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Grenle, Nehun (sincl en Alcohelrsm
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov15|ons agrees to comply w1th the prowsmns of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractar's

representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. Ifit is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant iearns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” "ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contrac,teﬁ)lame fewter Nishia @mal on Alcchalsm
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not inciude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy- making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-238, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistie blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G

Contractor initials
Certification of Compiiance with requirements peraining to Federal Nandiscnmination, Equat Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistieblower protections
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

‘1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Hlebel s

;
unc I en

N

Contracto}Nam :

Grec,kf} /\/qu'l“ﬁ
/

i

[ v 3 /
Date Name:  foter Kallem
Tile:  Qasidnt and CE9

Exhibit G V
Contractor Initials .

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federa! grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or aicohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor-Na

7024116

Date

CU/DHHS/110713

o Lnader Noshor Gonail en Mechelism

i

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Depértmen of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Assaciate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. '

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Agdregation’ shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. )

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2008.

h. “HIPAA’ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials L____
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement QQ ((ﬂ
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New Hampshire Department o

ealth and Human Services

Exhibit |

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

~Section 164,103~ - T T

(2)

a.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PH!:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
L. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials ‘ _——

Health Insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

()

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an |mpact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above svtuatlons The risk assessment shall include, but not be -
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made,;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require ali of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving P

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 9 “é
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such

__business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard

312014

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of - -
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

~ Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an

amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PH!
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHi to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Q{? i
Exhibit | Contractor initials
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Exhibit |

(4)

()

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shali certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resoived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. &/

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other termsor
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

. INWITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

P _
The State Zf# Nameof th Contra tor()

/
Signature-of Authorized Representative Stgnature of Authorizéd Réﬁ’ese\'ﬁatlve

[san.s g;rfﬁ" Poter HKalleher

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
fresident and (EO
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Au orized Representative
Date Date
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials 'OU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. ifthe
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SeENOalGLN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
" the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act,
Conptractor Name:
/ 'y]
/

Lrﬁh/ f\/mhvw w/\u" en A’/(;h {is m
g | LN

Date ' Name: {ote- keluh;v

Title: waijr cncl (50

Exhibit J - Cedification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials lAV
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

777 "Asthe Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses-te the --
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: [0-26l- K07

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or arganization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;

Name: Amount;

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount;

v

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Heaith and Human Services
Amendment #L.to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendmaent #2") dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Dapartment of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State® or "Department”) and Hope on Haven Hill, inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a place of
business at 326 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemnor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late item A) and amended by an agreement
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A}, the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
contract by writlten agreement of the parties and approval of the Govemor and
Executive council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree io increase the price limitation without extending the
pletion date; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenanis and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to
amend the contract as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Biock 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $482 119 from
$482,119 to read: $964,238.

CADHHS/400213




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

¢/1/11 t
Date Terry Smth———"

Director

Contractor Name:

a7 &LF\M

Date Name: Yz id Trwid
Title: Cre ! .\30&@9 oC’D\(LE,cﬁ'D(Ls

Acknowledgement: i

State of NEIPOWIMAL | County of SSmaftee?) on « }vw\ e "1), 2017
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified abofe, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged

that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

~Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

DAVID W. MARTINELL!
Justice of the

Hampshire
My July 24,2018

o St L, SEET~
Name and Titl&of Notary £r Justice 4f the

e Peace

CA/DHHS/100213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,

substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

o i i VYA

Date Rafne:l/ v Six

. Title: !, A=
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213



June 4, 2017

This statement hereby certifies that the Board of Directors of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. voted to
approve the amendment of Form P-37, Block 1.8 of the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness
Prevention and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use
Disorders Contract dated on May 10th of 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. to increase Price
Limitation by $482,119 from $482,119 to read: $964,238.

Affirmed and signed as authorized,

Kevin frwin

Chair; Board of Directors
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
Rochester Hill Road
Rochester, NH 03867

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _STRAGOL

f
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ~ ____dayof ne, 20_/__ 7

Tawi s DAVID W. MARTINELU
By \42«\“)—& o ' ustice of the Peace - New Hampshire
(Name of Biaoted e ot G jasion Expi sz"zo'a
/. e/-/% M

N . . . -
Commission Expires: ___
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State of Netw Hampshive
Hepartment of Btate

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certity that Hope on Haven Hill Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation filed
November 25, 2015. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

‘concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3 day of December, A.D. 2015

2 W

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
Lo Mickpil . MupPHy , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the A/gency; cannot be contract signatory)
g

1. } am a duly elected Officer of Qég‘;d‘ . 7k &{,Uzﬂ J &( g .
A )

(Agency Name

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held orf-%%péu—— 2 <,>Qé ‘%
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the sﬁ'rz/c(/ 44 @@(/&W

¥fle of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

20/ F
s the duly elected ¥Vl 7 s etprs O

{Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of C&(tract Signatory)

of the Agency.

Signaturg/of the Elected éfficer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of S7hA /9 F I O/ZD

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 7 & day of ju Ne 20/ 7

the Agency) m

(Notar'y Public/Justice of the Peace)

U CLAIRE T. BLAISDELL, Notary Public
A My Commission Expires August 14, 2018

Commission Expires: ?/ / 'f/ /3

By

{Name of Efected Officer

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

HOPEH-1 OP 1D: KMJ
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

07/29/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy|ies) must be endorsed. }f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Kilbride & Harris
Insurance Services LLC
210 Westem Avenue
So. Portland, ME 04106

SONECT Malony J. Hunt
(A10 No, Exty, 207-774-7919

TTEE oy, 207-774-7920

EMAL ss. mhunt@khinsurance.com

Melony J, Hunt INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
] insurer A : North American Specialty Co
INSURED Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. INSURER B :
PO Box 1272
Rochester, NH 03867 INSURER C : -
INSURER D : p—
- INSURER E : B .
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

r.iabmty

I &

INSR | - oL POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD smﬁﬁﬂ POLICY NUMBER (MMDONYYYY) I(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X T COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY i ; | EACH OCCURRENCE 5 1,000,000
i UAMAGE TORENTED
X cLamsmace || ocewr | [TBD-Q18615S-0114 ’ 08/01/2016 | 08/01/2017 [ BANAGEIORENTED T 50,000
( ! ' tﬁa EXP (Any one perscn) ' 5 5,000,
e ' i PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | '§ 1,000,000
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ £ 3,000,000
{ GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT ARPLIES PER. Lo | GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 ,000,
[:! poricy | AR D voc | \ _ | PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 1,000,000
| OTHER ' — | - 3
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ‘ \ ! [ (C.E?gg’u%iﬁ: SINGLE U1 s
ANY AUTQ : 3 BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 800! v -
| AJTos ATTGS j BOOILY INJURY {Per accident) ]
‘ NON-OWNED : PROPERTY DANMAGE s
__ i HREDAUTOS AUTOS ' (Per acadent)
I $
r —
UMBRELLA LIAB ocCUR i EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ _
RETENTION § ! -l —_— l - $
| WORKERS COMPENSATION : i | -
|AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN | ‘ |starure | €
[ ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE . EL EACH ACCIDENT $ N
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? DrN /A ; )
(Mandatory in NH} l i | E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] §
\f yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below | E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A ‘Professional i TBD-Q186155-0114 7 08/01/2016 | 08/01/2017 ;Per Claim 1,000,000
Aggregate 3,000,000

|
. -

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHOR'ZED REPRESENTATIVE
Melony J. Hunt

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



A
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

HOPEH-1

P ID: KMJ
DATE (MMDD/YYYY)

06/09/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Kilbride & Harris

207-774-7919

GONIACT Joseph A. Kilbride, CPCU

Izr;%uavancte Se&vices LLC TN, Ext); 207-774-7919 r&{‘,é, No): 207-774-7920
estern Avenue E-MAI
So. Portland, ME 04106 | BpbRESs:
Joseph A. Kilbride, CPCU _INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
msurer a ; ZUfich
INSURED Hope on Haven Hill INSURER B :
Attn: Mary Ellen Jackson ]
PO Box 1272 INSURER C :
Rochester, NH 03867 INSURER D ;
INSURERE :
INSURER F ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR DDL [SUBR
LTR WVD

POLICY EFF

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER DO TrY LMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OGCURRENCE s
| cLams-mape D OCCUR DAMAGE TORENTED s
— MED EXP (Any one person) $
L] PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | §
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
POLICY RO Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | §
r‘ OTHER: $
AUTOMOBILE LABILITY COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT | ¢
: ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
- ROTESonLY AUT5eUED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
[ ?‘L?T % ONLY XSPO%V(%%Q _@ﬁg&g&w\% $
$
|| umereLLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
Ded | | RETENTION'S s
A rggéﬁ%g&?mﬁ%?ﬁ% YIN 6ZZUB-9F89394-8-16 08/02/2016 | 08/02/2017 ] S%ETUET [ ggH 100,000
s esceneronpiniEmeamee [, ' cocuconr s 100000
{Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ d
DL AT ION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT | § 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional R Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

ami.carvotta@dhhs.nh.gov

|

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
DHHS
Via email

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Joseph A. Kilbride, CPCU

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

326 ROCHESTER HHLL RD, ROCHESTER

Mission: To provide a nurturing honee environment to pregunant women with a
Substance Use Disorvler who are in recovery, along with their children, for up to
a Uear postpartuum.

Vision: BY providing a safe home with comprehensive addiction treatment
services, family therapy, parenting classes, advancement in education and Life
coaching we will support favnilies in their Recovery from addiction. An
enriched self-esteem, confidence and a tool-belt full of Life skills will prowmote
lndependence and sustained Sooriety.

Goal: To open our doors and accept residents oy Septenber 1, 2016. Sooney, if
the stars aligwn, as we are hoping they do. 5013 Nonprofit status is pending.
Fiscal Sponsorship is through New Futures of Concord, N,

Ematl: hopeoninavennill@swall . cova

Facebook: Wttp://wvav . facebook.com

website: www.hopeonhavenhill.org
Mailing Address: Hope On Haven Hill PO Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03867

Donations can be made dirvectly by check or cash sent directly to the PO Box
Listed above, checks can be maade out to Hope Own Haven Hill, or through our
GoFundMe account which can be found on the website.



Carvotta, Ami

% Ranaed Statovets

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

HI Ami

Mary Ellen Jackson <maryellenjacksonconsulting@gmail.com>

Wednesday, March 08, 2017 3:51 PM

Carvotta, Ami; Mary Ellen Jackson

Flnancial reports

HHH 123116 BALANCE SHEET revised.pdf; HHH 123116 STMT OF ACTIVITY revised.pdf;
FinancialsBoardAgenda.pdf

We are less than 2 months old, so we wont have an audit yet
But here is what | can provide, | have asked our CPA if he has more to offer and will get that to you

tomorrow.

Mary Ellen Jackson

maryellenjacksonconsulting@gmail com
Consulting and Interim Executive Director

Hope on Haven Hill
603-397-717 cell
207-361-3068 home

Jundey ended Lkatime ot of fuicne . Drsetyiom ISl rorh

a() AC*\\;\TU



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

INDEPENDENT AUDIT POLICY

It is the policy of Hope on Haven Hill (HHH) to undergo an annual independent audit, under
the direction of the Finance Committee Committee, in order to fulfill requirements established
by federal and state regulatory bodies, as well as to ensure on-going accountability to its
funders, members, constituents and the general public.

The audit process shall comply with the following:

o The audit will be completed no later than four and a half months from the close of the
fiscal period (unless cause for delay can be substantiated and approved by the Audit
Committee).

o The audit will be conducted in compliance with the AICPA Audit & Accounting Guide
for Not For-Profit Organizations, and generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS).

o The audit will encompass the entire scope of the organization's activities, including all
departments, or entities that operate under the auspices of HHH.

o The audit shall utilize a two (2) year reporting format on all financial statements.

Audit footnote disclosures will follow the disclosure requirements as set forth by the most
currently applicable accounting standards, and, at a minimum, include the following:

. Description of organization

. Description of funds

. Description of programs

. Description of significant accounting policies

. Method for allocating costs

. Method for computing depreciation

. Method for computing supporting service costs (overhead/organizational)
. Summary of long-term commitments

. Summary of significant accounting adjustments

HHH will annually request and receive a written management letter, addressing internal control
issues, or a written document stating that a management letter was requested but not warranted.

HHH shall respond to all management letter issues identified in writing. HHH's responses
shall be incorporated into the body of the management letter to:
¢ Ensure inclusion to any subsequent distributions of that document.

o Create a complete and formal record of issues and actions taken for future reference.



The audit draft document and management letter will be:

1. Presented to the HHH Audit Committee for review;
Discussed initially with the auditor in executive session;

Then discussed with management; and

oL

Considered and voted upon for approval and recommendation to the Board of Directors

for final action.

ADOPTED: November 2, 2016.



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2016

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1001 Checking-Profile 4,178.97
1002 Provident Checking 38,427.97
1003 Provident Bank Escrow Savings 12,000.78
1010 Provident Payroll Checking 50.00
Total Bank Accounts $54,657.72
Accounts Receivable
1100 Pledges/donations Receivable 58,101.80
Total Accounts Receivable $58,101.80
Other Current Assets
1550 Gift Cards ON HAND (Rec'd IN 600.00
KIND)
Total Other Current Assets $600.00
Total Current Assats $113,359.52
Fixed Assets
1600 LHI-Start Up 60,386.93
1601 LHI-Paid from COBG Grant 103,794.50
1610 Furniture and Fixtures 8,380.00
1700 Vehicles 16,294.00
Total Fixed Assets $188,855.43
TOTAL ASSETS $302,214.95
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $0.00
Total Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Liabilities $0.00
Equity
3200 Retained Earnings 70,071.35
Net Revenue 232,143.60
Total Equity $302,214.95
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $302,214.95

Note
Accounts Receivable item is DHHS Contract for DEC to be received in JAN, $58,101.80.

Accrual Basis



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of January 31, 2017

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1001 Checking-Profile 1,372.11
1002 Provident Checking 153,370.38
1003 Provident Bank Escrow Savings 12,001.78
1010 Provident Payroll Checking -1,124.25
1050 Provident Acct-Online Purchase Deposits 230.52
Total Bank Accounts $165,850.54
Accounts Receivable
1100 Pledges/donations Receivable 65,745.04
Total Accounts Receivable $65,745.04
Other Current Assets
1550 Gift Cards ON HAND (Rec'd IN KIND) 572.24
Total Other Current Assets $572.24
Total Current Assets $232,167.82
Fixed Assets
1600 LHI-Start Up 61,809.96
1601 LHI-Paid from CDBG Grant 103,794.50
1610 Furniture and Fixtures 8,380.00
1620 Equipment 3,000.00
1700 Vehicles 16,294.00
Total Fixed Assets $193,278.46
TOTAL ASSETS $425,446.28
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $0.00
Other Current Liabilities
2500 Provident Line of Credit 0.00
Total Other Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Liabilities $0.00
Equity
3200 Retained Earnings 70,071.35
Net Revenue 355,374.93
Total Equity $425,446.28
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $425,446.28

Accrual Basis

i



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
July - December, 2016

TOTAL
REVENUE
4000 Donations - Unrestricted 97,120.48
4005 Donations - Temporarily Restricted 2,750.00
4200 Gift In Kind Donations 4,030.17
4400 Sales of Promo Product Revenue 400.00
4600 Services - DHHS Etc 168,565.80
4700 Grants Income 6,000.00
4705 GRANTS Income - Restricted 127,456.00
Total Revenue $406,322.45
GROSS PROFIT $406,322.45
EXPENDITURES
5000 PROGRAMMING
5010 PROGRAMMING-Housing Expenses 249.66
5020 PROGRAMMING-FOOD Expenses 1,470.55
5025 PROGRAMMING-Education Materials 1,998.69
5030 PROGRAMMING-Other 1,474.53
Materials/Supplies
5040 PROGRAMMING-Resident-family 861.04
Expenses
5050 Programming-IN KIND Donations 185.66
Total 5000 PROGRAMMING 6,240.13
6010 Advertising 190.00
6020 Bank Charges 1.00
6030 Board of Directors & Volunteer 153.90
Expenses
6035 Business Licenses & fees 200.00
6040 Dues & Subscriptions 282.74
6100 Fundraising Expenses 195.92
6200 Insurance
6205 Insurance - D&O 1,712.00
6210 Insurance - Liability 8,133.81
6230 Insurance - Workers Comp 14,329.10
Total 6200 Insurance 24,1749
6400 Legal & Professional Fees
6406 Accounting & Bookkeeping IN KIND 2,035.00
6415 Management Consulting 11,220.00
Total 6400 Legal & Professional Fees 13,255.00
6500 Oftice Expenses
6505 Office Supplies 3,5637.99
6506 Office Supplies/Expenses IN KIND 140.74
6510 Stationery & Printing 520.29
6515 Postage and Shipping 76.40
6520 TELEPHONES, Internet Access, Etc 1,753.22

Accrual Basis 172



TOTAL

6525 CELL PHONE Expenses
Total 6500 Office Expenses

6600 PAYROLL EXPENSES

6601 Executive Director

6602 Program Director

6604 Clinical Director

6605 SALARIES AND WAGES-ADMIN
6606 Substance Ab Coun/Case Manager

6607 SALARIES and WAGES-PROGRAM
6608 SALARIES and WAGES-Fundraising

6610 Administrative Assistant
6611 Recovery Support Stalff
6618 Payroli Taxes-Employer Portion
6619 Payroll Taxes - NH Ui&Admin
6620 Employee Benefits
6650 Payroll Service Fees
6651 PAYROLL Time Clock Fees
6652 Paychex Retirement Services Fees
6655 Employment and Hiring Expenses
Total 6600 PAYROLL EXPENSES
6675 Promotional Expenses/Products
6700 Rent or Lease
6710 Repair & Maintenance
6720 Computer IT Repairs & Maint
6725 Facilities Repairs
6730 Grounds Maintenance
6735 Cleaning Expenses
6740 Security & Alarm Fees
6745 Trash Removal Fees
Total 6710 Repair & Maintenance
6750 Protessional Development
6755 Certifications and Licensures
6760 Seminars & Continuing Ed
Total 6750 Protessional Development
6900 Utilities
Total Expenditures
NET OPERATING REVENUE
OTHER REVENUE
7000 Interest Earned
Total Other Revenue
OTHER EXPENDITURES
8000 Miscellaneous
8040 Furnishings at Startup
8050 Furnishings - IN KIND
Total Other Expenditures
NET OTHER REVENUE
NET REVENUE

463.89
6,492.53

0.00
13,750.00
17,444.17
14,953.13

0.00
17,230.87

0.00

0.00

6,550.31
13,896.37
6,383.92
1,653.79
5,618.40
690.05
165.00
755.01
576.95
99,667.97

975.97
8,400.00

3,868.48
435.47
291.88

69.95
346.00
81.01
5,092.79

240.00
890.40
1,130.40
1,162.81
$167,616.07

$238,706.38

0.78
$0.78

3.32
5,477.76
1,082.48

$6,563.56
$-6,562.78

$232,143.60

Accrual Basis

22



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
July 2016 - January 2017

TOTAL
REVENUE
4000 Donations - Unrestricted 200,916.62
4001 Donations-Business Community 4,060.90
4005 Donations - Temporarily Restricted 7,750.00
4200 Gift In Kind Donations 4,243.92
4400 Sales of Promo Product Revenue 620.50
4600 Services - DHHS Etc 234,310.84
4700 Grants Income 10,000.00
4705 GRANTS Income - Restricted 132,456.00
Total Revenue $594,358.78
GROSS PROFIT $594,358.78
EXPENDITURES
5000 PROGRAMMING
5001 PROGRAMMING-Child Care 69.20
Expenses
5003 PROGRAMMING-Clothing Expenses 77.45
5004 PROGRAMMING-Resident Medical 390.59
Expenses
5010 PROGRAMMING-Housing Expenses 361.28
5015 PROGRAMMING-Laundry Expenses - 727.32
Offsite
5020 PROGRAMMING-FOOD Expenses 4,199.29
5021 Programming-IN KiND Donations 185.66
5025 PROGRAMMING-Other Resident 484.28
Expenses-Non Medical
5035 PROGRAMMING-Resident Books 214.65
and Activities
5040 PROGRAMMING-Family Support 888.04
Expenses
Total 5000 PROGRAMMING 7,597.76
5100 PROGRAMMING-Other 1,968.47
Materials/Supplies
5200 PROGRAMMING-Education Materials 1,998.69
6000 PAYROLL EXPENSES 0.00
6001 Executive Director 17,882.82
6002 Program Director 22,44417
6004 Clinical Director 20,671.36
6005 SALARIES AND WAGES-ADMIN 0.00
6006 Substance Ab Coun/Case Manager 25,607.82
6007 SALARIES and WAGES-PROGRAM 0.00
6008 SALARIES and WAGES-Fundraising 0.00
6010 Administrative Assistant 8,911.91
6011 Recovery Support Staff 28,754.87
6018 Payroll Taxes-Employer Portion 9,465.42

Accrual Basis

113



TOTAL

6019 Payroll Taxes - NH UI&Admin
6020 Employee Benefits
Total 6000 PAYROLL EXPENSES

6200 Insurance

6205 Insurance - D&O

6210 Insurance - Liability

6215 Insurance - Workers Comp
Total 6200 Insurance

6300 Interest Expense
6400 Professional Fees & Consultants
6405 Accounting and Bookkeeping
6406 Accounting & Bookkeeping IN KIND
6415 Management Consulting
6450 PAYROLL fees
6451 Payroll Processing Fees
6452 Paychex Retirement Services Fees
6453 PAYROLL Time Clock Fees
Total 6450 PAYROLL fees

6460 Employment and Hiring Expenses
Total 6400 Professional Fees & Consultants
6500 Office Expenses - Consumable
Supplies

6505 Office Supplies

6506 Office Supplies/Expenses IN KIND

6510 Stationery & Printing

6515 Postage and Shipping

6520 TELEPHONES, Internet Access, Etc

6525 CELL PHONE Expenses
Total 6500 Office Expenses - Consumable
Supplies
6600 OTHER Expenses

6605 Advertising

6610 Bank Charges

6615 Board of Directors & Volunteer
Expenses

6620 Business Licenses & fees
6625 Dues & Subscriptions
Total 6600 OTHER Expenses

6700 OCCUPANCY Costs
6705 Rent or Lease
6710 Repair & Maintenance
6720 Computer IT Repairs & Maint
6725 Facilities Repairs
6726 Grounds Maintenance
6727 Cleaning Expenses
6728 Security & Alarm Fees
6729 Trash Removal Fees
Total 6710 Repair & Maintenance

6740 Utilities

Accrual Basis

3,235.60
8,630.44
145,604.41

1,712.00
8,329.81
14,328.10
24,370.91

2.73

360.00
2,248.75
12,740.00

1,051.47
1,006.68

220.00
2,278.15

604.95
18,231.85

3,889.98
140.74
520.29
122.85

1,753.22
463.89

6,890.97

190.00
170.00
153.90

200.00
322.69
1,036.59

10,600.00

3,868.48
603.97
719.21

69.95
457.00
189.46

5,908.07

1,225.27

213



TOTAL

Total 6700 OCCUPANCY Costs 17,733.34
6750 Staff Development and Training
6755 Certifications and Licensures 240.00
6760 Seminars & Continuing Ed 965.40
Total 6750 Staff Development and Training 1,205.40
6850 TRANSPORTATION-AUTO
6855 Vehicle - Gas 258.79
6870 Vehicle Registration 82.00
Total 6850 TRANSPORTATION-AUTO 340.79
6900 FUNDRAISING Expenses 195.92
6925 Promotional Expenses/Products 975.97 -
Total 6900 FUNDRAISING Expenses 1,171.89
6999 Uncategorized Expenditure 2,622.87
Total Expenditures . $230,776.67
NET OPERATING REVENUE $363,582.11
OTHER REVENUE
7000 Interest Earned 1.80
Total Other Revenue $1.80
OTHER EXPENDITURES
8000 Miscellaneous -53.69
8040 Furnishings at Startup 7,180.19
8050 Furnishings - IN KIND 1,082.48
Total Other Expenditures $8,208.98
NET OTHER REVENUE $-8,207.18
NET REVENUE $355,374.93

Note
CHART OF ACCOUNTS UPDATED JAN 2017 therefore reports. Accounts may have new numbers and new location on the profit and
loss.

Accrual Basis 33
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Kerrylee Norton, RN

OBIJECTIVE: Obtain Position as Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT)-RN

WORK EXPIERENCE

Dates Employed

7/1/15- Present Chief Operating Officer

Hope on Haven Hill, Rochester NH

Co-Founder of emerging Non Profit Residential Treatment facility for Pregnant Women with
Substance use Disorder. Responsibilities include but not limited to, Filing for 501 ¢{(3), Grant
writing, preparing and testifying for Variance and Planning Board, Submitting application for
Lev el 4 inpatient treatment facility licensure, Prepare policies and admission criteria,
prepare Facility policies, Coordinate fundraising and volunteers, Give presentations to local
schools, Civic agencies, businesses and NH allies, Advocate for Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery services for NH and care for Men and Women who reach out to us while unable to
access care in NH and on a Volunteer hasis assist them with getting support and treatment.

11/2008- 11/13/15 RN
Garrison Women’s Health Center, Dover Nh

Triage and Infertility Nurse In busy OB-GYN office. Responsibilities include but not limited to,
triaging all patient calls, New Prenatal OB intakes, Essure Procedures, Infertility coverage
including call weekends, Employee health, OSHA Training and compliance for all employees,
new hire training and policy and protocol implementation.

1/2006- 4/2010 RN, CPSN,
Atlantic Plastic Surgical Center, Portsmouth NH

All Facets of care for patients undergoing Ambulatory Surgery, Admit patients, Circulate and
Scrub during surgical cases and Recover patients in PACU. Certified as a Certified Plastic
Surgical Nurse with Nationa! Certification in Skin Wellness. Cerified to perfom
Microdermabrasions, Chemical Peels and Laser therapy.




5/1994- 10/2008 Maternal Child Nurse
Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth NH Resource Nurse

All Facets of Maternal Health, Including Labor and Delivery, Postpartum, Well Baby Nusery,
Level 2 Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support,
Sibling Class Facilitator, NRP instructor, PALS instructor, Resource Nurse and Staff
Orientation,

1/2000- 1/2005 Pediatric Nurse
Portsmouth Pediatric Associates, Portsmouth NH

Weekend Coverage for Triage and Care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in a very busy
Pediatric Practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends | became very competent in all
facets of pediatric care and emergencies.

1/2002- 1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator
Harbour Women’s Health, Portsmouth NH

Triaged all patient medical concerns, Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with
Patients results, and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with Infertilty patients.
Taught and Coordinated all Childbirth Education Porgrams.

5/1993- 5/1995 Triage Nurse

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage all patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care.

9/1993-5/1994 ‘ Substitute School Nurse
SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse in SAD 60. Worked in all School settings. Elementary, Middle School
and High School.

Past and Present Cerfications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN and STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse

License compact state

References upon Request



5/1994- 10/2008 Maternal Child Nurse
Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth NH Resource Nurse

All Facets of Maternal Health, Including Labor and Delivery, Postpartum, Well Baby Nusery,
Level 2 Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support,
Sibling Class Facilitator, NRP instructor, PALS instructor, Resource Nurse and Staff
Orientation.

1/2000- 1/2005 Pediatric Nurse
Portsmouth Pediatric Associates, Portsmouth NH

Weekend Coverage for Triage and Care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in a very busy
Pediatric Practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends | became very competent in all
facets of pediatric care and emergencies.

1/2002- 1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator
Harbour Women’s Health, Portsmouth NH

Triaged all patient medical concerns, Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with
Patients results, and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with Infertifty patients.
Taught and Coordinated all Childbirth Education Porgrams.

5/ 1993; 5/1995 Triage Nurse

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage all patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care.

9/1993-5/1994 Substitute School Nurse
SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse in SAD 60. Worked in all School settings. Elementary, Middle School
and High School.

Past and Present Cerfications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN and STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse

License compact state

References upon Request



Jennifer Stout, M.A, LCSW, LICSW, MLADC

Education:

Boston University, Boston, MA
Master of Social Work (MSW), May 2004
Clinical Major

University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, PA
Master of Sociology {MA), Dec 2002
Concentration in Drug Abuse and Poverty

Haverford College, Haverford, PA
Bachelor of Arts (BA), May 1997

Licensure:

Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Maine, May 2008 (current)
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, New Hampshire, February 2011 (current)
Master Alcoho! and Drug Counselor, New Hampshire, November 2012 {current)

Related Experience:

Manchester Community Health Center 3/15 — Present

Provide individual assessment and treatment for individuals with mental health and substance use disorders
in a community health care setting. Provide brief and longer term counseling, as well as specialized
substance abuse and trauma treatment to clients as appropriate, including Secking Safety, DBT, and
Progressive Counting. Work with medical staff, interpreters, nutritionists and community workers to
provide integrated care for a diverse population. Supervise clinicians towards MLADC certification,

R.0O.A.D To a Better Life 6/14-Present

Therapist

Provided initial assessment and treatment planning for clients participating in Suboxone treatment program.
Maintained a caseload of individual therapy clients diagnosed with co-occurring disorders. Planned and
facilitated 34 therapy groups per week, including gender specific programming for women, exploring
topics such as the science of addiction, retapse prevention, recovery skills and healthy relationships.

Families First Health and Support Center 12/10-6/14

Homeless Health Care Prograny/ Prenatal Care Program

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Counselor

Provided individual and group substance abuse counseling in the community to individuals who were
homeless. Worked closely with medical and care coordination staff on the mobile health care van to meet
and offer services to clients in a timely manner. Offered assessment, treatment planning and ongoing
counseling using motivational interviewing, cognitive behavioral, DBT, and trauma-informed approaches.
Offered crisis intervention services as needed, often working closely with other local agencies to respond
best to clients needs.

Counseling Services, Inc, Biddeford, ME 9/04-8/10

-Clinician, Crisis Response Services: Provided telephone support and assessment, as well as face-to-face
assessments for adults and children experiencing psychiatric emergencies. Work with clients, agency
supervisors and psychiatrists to create a disposition that maintains client safety in the least restrictive
setting.

-Clinical Case Manager: Provided supportive counseling and case management services to adults with
severe and persistent mental illness. As member of [ntensive Community Integration team, worked with



clients needing a high level of care. Facilitated family meetings, provided crisis intervention services, took
part in weekly multi-disciplinary team meeting. Co-facilitated skills building and activity group weekly.

VA Boston Healthcare System, Boston, MA 9/03-5/04

Social Work Intern/ Substance Abuse and Homelessness Programs

Provided counseling services to veterans in recovery from substance abuse. Trained and certified in
Seeking Safety protocol which provides skills-based therapy to clients with PTSD and substance abuse. Co-
facilitated two dual-diagnosis groups. Assisted in intake process at New England Shelter for Homeless
Veterans.

Tewksbury State Hospital, Tewksbury, MA 9/02-5/03

Social Work Intern/ Inpatient Psychiatry Unit

Performed intakes and assessments, provided case management, supportive counseling, and crisis
intervention services for individuals with severe and persistent mental iliness on a locked psychiatric unit.
Facilitated family meetings and developed treatment and discharge plans .

Group Facilitation
o R.O.A.D ToaBetter Life: Facilitate a woman’s group and mixed gender group weekly, exploring
topics such as relapse prevention, recovery skills, mindfulness, healthy relationships, and
motivational enhancement. 6/15- Present.
e Crossroads House: Facilitate a weekly “Mindfulness in Recovery” group for men living.
¢ Bonfire Recovery: Working to develop group programming for men’s sober house.

Teaching/ Training
¢ Adjunct Faculty, York County Community College, Well, ME: Teach Introduction to
Psychology and Abnormal Psychology. Develop course syllabus, evaluate student success
through exams, oral presentations, and research papers, deliver instruction in a face to face
environment, 2010-present.
Conference Presentations
o  “Understanding High Risk Behaviors and Providing Trauma Informed Care for Social Workers”
NASW Pennsylvania Chapter, October 2015 (upcoming)
¢ “Understanding High Risk Behaviors and Providing Trauma Informed Care in a Homeless
Healthcare Setting”. National Health Care for the Homeless Conference and Policy Symposium,
May, 2014,
s  “Providing Trauma-Informed Care: Opportunities for Home Visitors”. New Hampshire
Children’s Trust Annual Conference: Substance Abuse During Pregnancy and Beyond, May
2013. Upcoming:
Agency Trainings
s “Providing Trauma-Informed Care for Shelter Residents” Staff Training: Crossroads House,
Portsmouth, 2012, 2013, 2014.
o  “Introduction to Trauma Informed Care”, Staff Training, Families First, Portsmouth, NH, 2014

Yolunteer Work

Prevention Point Philadelphia, Needle Exchange, Philadelphia, PA 1994-1997, 1999-2002
DBHART Disaster Relief Volunteer, Concord, NH 2012- Present.

Rockingham County Jail- Substance abuse and Stress Management group for inmates



LISA GAUTHIER
e

Objective: To obtain a position in the ficld of social service dealing with individuals and families. Great problem solving skills and strong work
ethic with 9 years experience in healthcare ready to contibute my knowledge and experience to the field of social work.

CORE STRENGTHS

Ability to analyze, discuss, detect, observe and solve difficult social issues
Patience, love and keen interest in helping individuals and oppressed populations
Ability to develop good relationships with clients

Possess effective communication skills

Ability to handle pressure and work independently

Know-how to keep sensitive information confidential

Abilily to utilize theories and practice model appropriately

FIELD EXPERIENCE
Frisbie Memonal Hospital, Rochester, NH
Care Management Department, GeroPsychiatry
September, 2016 — April, 2017

Communicate and collaborated with members of the healthcare team as well as patients to help plan for
treatment

Participated in patient and family meetings to resolve issues surrounding in-hospital and post-hospital
care :

Conducted Admission Assessment on incomiug patients and developed a treatiment plan related to their
social service issues

Conducted group work with patients ou the geropsychiatry unit utilizing Cognitive Behavioral Therapy
techniques

Worked in relation with other social service agencies throughout the state and some out of state
agencics to acquire service and assistance that patients needed
Participated in Care Coordination Rounds

Provided education to patient and families in regards to social services that they have been set up with
Maintained accurate, thorough, narrative documentation on patients
Developed discharge plans for patients

WORK EXPERIENCE
Frisbie Memorial Hospital Rochester, NH

Licensed Nursing Assistuni November 2000 - Present

*  Assists RN with data collection on admission and throughout the patients hospitalization
e Collects specimens and assists in the performance of procedures within the scope of practice of an LNA




*

*

Observes and reports patients needs and responses

Demonstrates good judgment in analyzing tacts and conditions to determine what actions should be taken or
reported to the RN.

Assists in the admission, transfer, and discharge process of pif¥nts. R
Performs all duties maintaining patient confidentiality, privacy, and respect.
Interventional Spine Medicine Barrington, NH

Admunistrative Assistant/ Cuse Manager March 2008 - November 2011
Payroll
Human vesources (new hire)
Credentialing for Physicians in the office
Maintain medical records and referrals
Case management
Providing information for patients to receive outside services in relation to their condition.

Hyder Family Hospice Dover, NH
Licensed Nursing Assistant March 2009 - April 2013

Provide coinfort to patients and their families

Provided support for patients and their families in regerds to paticnts last requests
Provided end of life care while maintaining the respect and dignity of the patients.

EDUCATION
Granite State College Concord, NH

Bachelors of Scierice: Healthcare Adminisiration/Geromology, June 2008
University of New England Biddeford, ME
Masters of Clinical Social Work. May, 2017
Organizations

Menther of the Nailonal Association of Soctal Workers, 2015




Mary Ellen Jackson

VORI R sushul s

Career Objectives

To assume a leadership position within an organization dedicated to advancing the common good
through innovation, leadership and collaboration.

To bring my experience, knowledge and leadership strengths into play to support the success of an
collaborative team pursuing a shared vision.

To be part of a focused strategy designed to improve the overall health and vitality of families and
communities in the state of Maine and beyond.

Employment

President and CEO of the NH Center for Nonprofits 2005-2015

Led the transformation of a 30 year-old association of nonprofits from an outdated trade center into
a vibrant center for nonprofit advocacy and leadership development.

This role demanded visionary leadership, intense collaboration, innovative project development,
fiscal management and strategy, fund raising, board development and the capacity to foster unity in
the nonprofit sector and spearhead strategies to elevate the sectors visibility.

Milestones included quadrupling membership, writing several nationally recognized impact reports,
establishment of an innovative online shared resource platform and a suite of relevant ongoing
educational and convening opportunities for nonprofit leaders.

In addition, strategic and intentional partnerships were formed with more than 30 foundation
leaders, individual donors, The Business and Industry Association, the Colleges and University
Council, NH Hospital Association and multiple government agencies and networks of nonprofits.

Executive Director of FamilyStrength 2003-2005

Oversaw a $1.5 million statewide behavioral health organization, which was in the midst of a turn-
around and eventual merger. This experience involved bringing the board and staff to a consensus
on what was best for the mission and then what was best for the organization and staff. | led an
intense period of analysis, organizational assessment, staff coaching and board leadership
development and decision-making. The end result was a merger.

Executive Director, Family Resource Center of Strafford County 1993-2003

Led the second phase of lifecycle development for the Family Resource Center, which focused on
child abuse prevention and early literacy. | was responsible for bringing the organization from a
$250,000 budget to a $1.5 million budget with a regional footprint. Developed partnerships with a
broad range of community and foundation leaders, donors, school system officials, parents, health
care leaders and business partners to and achieve measureable impact. Award winning program.




Regional Program Director of Tri-State Mediation 1994-2003
‘Developed and implemented mediation programs for junior high students in three regional schools
in southern NH. Worked closely with the faculty, students and area resource ‘providers to support

the success of youth to develop alternative dispute resolution skills.

Owner of small family business in Maine 1984-1994
For ten years co-owned and operated a regional garden center and landscaping company.

Adjunct Faculty , University of NH Thompson School 2000-2005
Taught grant writing, fundraising and nonprofit management at UNH as time and need permits.

Paralegal: Law Firm of Thornton and Early, Boston Ma. 1981-1984
Worked with victims of mesothelioma and helped prepare them as witnesses. Clients involved
pipefitters living throughout Maine and NH who were victims of toxic products, specifically asbestos.

Education

Masters Degree in Organizational Management, New England College

Bachelors Degree in Journalism, University of New Hampshire

16 Credit Certification in Mediation, UNH

Leadership and Management Certificate Program, Kellogg Schoo! of Management, Chicago

Awards and Recognitions

One of 25 People Shaping New Hampshire’s Future: Business NH Magazine Recognition
Outstanding Women of the Year, Keene State College

Citizenship and Leadership Award 2012- Citizens Bank NH

The NH Advantage Award- Business and Industry Association

Recognized multiple years as one of New Hampshire’s Most Influential Leaders; NH Magazine
Nonprofit Business of the Year: Business NH Magazine

Board Service and Speaking Engagements

Currently serve as an officer on the National Council of Nonprofits, Washington, DC.
NH Fiscal Policy Center Board, United Way of the Greater Seacoast Board, Strafford County Network
Board, Dover Rotary Board, Family Support NH Board, NH Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission.

Recent speaking engagements: National Volunteer Association Annual Conference, National Council
of Nonprofits Members Conference, Maine Association of Nonprofits Leadership Forum, Regional
Association of Land Trusts, Association of Safety Councils, Service Providers of New England, Council
for the Arts in New Hampshire, Boys and Girls Club of Southern New Hampshire, Network of Family
Support Organizations, Leading Age Maine and NH, NH Public Defenders Board, New Futures Forum.




Shannon Breanne Margera
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PRO AL PRO
1'am a motivated professional pursuing the Administrative Assistant position at Hope on Haven Hill. I am dedicated
and focused in achieving organizational goals as a team and confident in completing tasks independently. I am able

to multi-task and driven to complete any objective set before me. I have a strong work ethic and I am eager to learn
new skills.

EDUCATION

Bachclor of Science in Psychology (4.0 GPA) Currently Enrolled

Alpha Chi Horor Society, President’s Lisi Projected
Completion:

Southern New Hampshire University May
2017

SKILLS & QUALIFICATIONS

® Exceptional verbal and written communication skills
® Expertise in Microsoft Office Programs Excel, Office, and Outlook
® Excellent problem solving and critical thinking skills

d Ability to excel while working independently and also within a collaborative environment

ROFE L

Front Office Associate 9/2015-9/2016
Garrison Women’s Health — Dover, NH

® Checking patients in and out for their appointments

® Schedule and confirm patient appointments

® Address patient’s questions and concerns regarding billing, insurance, and appointment

1ssucs
Maintain and organize all administrative functions in the front office
Collect co-payments and verify insurance coverage
Balance nightly deposits and complete credit card processing

Managing administrative records and forms




Patient Services Representative 772014-8/2015

Aspen Dental - Seabrook, NH

* ® Maintain and organize all administrative functions in the front office

® Colicct co-payments #id Verify insurance coverage -

® Making financial arrangements with patients before treatients

Schedule and confirm patient appointments

Balance nightly deposits and complete credit card processing

Aunswering the office phone and distributing calls or messages accordingly

Managing administrative records and pulling/filing patient charts

Volunteer (Big Sister) 72013-Current
Big Brothers Big Sisters of the Greater Seacoast — Portsmouth, NH

® Developing a relationship with my match founded in trust
® Encouraging my match to pursue her goals and stay on course with school
d Participating in monthly activities with my match based on shared interests

® Demonstrating consistency, reliability, and maturity as a role model to my match

Short Term Disability Claims Examiner 822013-
5/2014

Sun Life Financial - Portsmouth, NH

® Analyze documents for eligibility of benefit payments

® Confirming that medical evidence supports disability
® Obtaining all necessary nformation to evalnate claim

® Preparing written explanation of claim decisions based on a review of the contractual provisions

and the analysis of the medical and occupational records
Processes claims for payments

Answering calls from claimants to provide service for questions and updates

Prioritizing of high volume case foad

Mail Processor 2/2013-8/2013
Northeast Credit Union - Portsmouth, NH

. Responsible for sorting and processing of member mail

® Processing of loan payments, payoffs, account closures and other member related services through

the mail

b Upkeep of fast paced and high volume pace with incentive based goals




® Proficient w 10-key pad and quick typing skills
® Remaining iocused and on task during daily repetitive duties

Server 72012~
82013

Tulsi - Kittery, ME

® Greeting, seating, and serving guests

® Anticipating, meeting, and exceeding guests’ needs

® Maintaining a clean and stocked working environment

® Building relationships with guests’ in order to initiate repeat business
® Boosted sales by offering add-ons and extras

Teller 872011-
9/2012

Citizen’s Bank - Somersworth, NH

® Process customer transactions quickly and efficiently

® Maintain and organize customer files and account information
® Answering phones

o Scheduling appointments for Bankers

® Outbound calling to current customers and potential customers

. Selling products that could enhance the customer experience




CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Mary Ellen Jackson *DOH Feb Executive Director $75,000 100% 75,000.00

Kerry Norton Program Director $65,000 100% 65,000.00

Jen Stout Clinical Director $76,884.08 | 25% 19,221.02

Shannon Margera House Manager $37,440 100% 37,440.00

Lisa Gauthier *DOH Feb Case manager/Counselor | $45,760 75% 34,320.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

February 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of -becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Councit approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Iltem A), September 7, 2016 (item #9), and September 21,
2016 (ltem #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current
Budget
Greater Nashua Council on 615 Amherst St. 166574-B001 $500,000
Alcoholism Nashua, NH 03063

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-B001 $482,119
Rochester, NH 03867

Families in Transition 122 Market St. 157730-B001 $499,207
Manchester, NH 03101

Total: | $1,481,326

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326
Total: $1,481,326
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been



His Excellency, Govemnor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page20f 3

identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother’s care. These amendments
are no additional cost, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment. However, these
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely to seek help
due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help couid result in separation from their
children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide
for their families, while addressing participants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health ilinesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic
biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across all services and levels of care. All services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother's care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

* Anger management classes

+ Coping skills

» Childbirth education classes

¢ Nurturing parenting classes

« lLactation services

¢ Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfuiness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for one (1) year, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, based upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and
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and the Honorable Executive Council
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Executive Council. This amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1)
additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

/A

Diregtor

/
/
me
Approved by:
rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
n providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #1"°) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department”) and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration-
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFOQORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Mpact ‘I', 1017
Date

Director

Contractor Name:

MOl S 247 MMOAM

Date Name: Yevio Tavid
Title: ¢ Ly - 3uaeDd ¢ DirfeTeld

Acknowledgement: ‘ ‘

State of ¥ €W Aiumpshs/€County of )7 J‘/ﬁ ("(UYU( on 3 /$’/a’20/ 7,
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person idemtified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

DAVID W. MARTINELL)
Justics of the Peace - New Hampshire
My Commission Expires July 24, 2018

Name and Tite of Notary or Justice of the Peace

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

e TR WL |

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHRHE/100213



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Iixt. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX:603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbs.nh.gov

Director

July 25, o0s L A T

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (Vendor # TBD), 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County
in an amount not to exceed $482,119, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

H )

[ State Fiscal Year Class T Title T Activity Code Amount

! 2017 | 502-500891 T Payments to Providers T 45057500 $482,119
| | | Total: $482,119

|

EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in
the mother's care. The Department will request Governor and Executive Council approval of
the other two (2) agreements once they are received from the vendors.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use disorder treatment services;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.
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The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State. When the Hope on Haven Hill program opens its doors it will allow
mothers to remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder.
The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work, and education. Hope
on Haven Hill will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate
care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our
community. THe vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and removing
barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger
community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

¢ Anger management classes

¢ Coping skills

o Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

o Lactation services

o Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’s care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
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pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five (5) and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
— (_\

“oF-Tery R Smith
Director

Approved by: W/IKWW
rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
1 providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

Disorders (§S-2017-DFA-01-Opend-02)

“Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governorand |
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

|

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Staie Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
326 Rochester Hill Road
Rochester, NH 03867

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number 05-95-45-450010-6146

(603) 834-0766

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitatj

June 30,2017 2 $482,119

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Slgnature

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

i 2 Hoorne |, & hairpecscen
h /74@—2 %/M Qéef;;f(’i“j:’\ Haven H) Bpaq;lppfbirgcfarg

.13 Acknowledgement: State of A Hueewe s v, County of  _(4edé& ~o

COMM!SSION

e wax (D

ﬁ‘&'l})ﬁ@ﬁk‘éﬂ itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace
HAM \t\\\‘ -Ké LLY Sttt Gous DN

'Ilm _uum\\‘

1.14 State Agency Slgnature .15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1
F)é.-/’—y—g’?( Date:.-?/:’lg/“ﬁ L \<¢c\ \& < ﬁﬁ \b:,/q_( HK—-

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personneél (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attormey General , Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

Wﬁv /] o )29 24t |

1.18 Approval by the GoVernor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attachcd
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shail become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.-H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreernent to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this A greement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials ‘




Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agrecment.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or

_her successor, shall he the State’s representative. - In the event

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordcring that the portion of the coatract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of

this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services;the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting --—-——
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in

detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject

matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report

described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Coantractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against al}
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and 32,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days priar to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 2§1-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manrer described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failurc by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failurc to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is thc wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be cxecuted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A
S$8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02

Scope of Services

Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

14.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 280.20, which may
include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent is employed in which case services can be extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health insurance
such as dental services, auto registration, personal care, and books and
tuition subject to department approval.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1.  Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3.  Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership with DHHS to review/assist the
development of program processes, service provision, and overall program

- outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DHHS to ensure desired

program benchmarks are achieved timely.

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

Page 1 of 9 Date q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
1.10.1.4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenroliment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access 1o services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2:1.2.  Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5.  Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.
2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women'’s

N
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

__ ExhibitA

ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women'’s
substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.
2.4.4, Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5, Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of;

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4,5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-

2.5.3. Case assessments.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the ability to provide onsite substance use disarder treatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apartments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatment services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor lnitial:7 l \/c ‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to: :

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.
2.7.3. Clothing.
2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children, who are under the age of
5 or not yet eligible for public school enrollment, into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
-shall ensure: -

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Wntten policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics {AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
hitp://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.full.pdf .

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare shall be available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services or provide referrals to services, when
no appropriate services are immediately available while managing a waiting list. The
Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Provide or refer to interim services untii the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises, to assess and
respond.

" Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials 1 t th(

$8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02 Q !
. pen Page 4 of 9 Dateg_ 9‘ Hﬂ




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

L T Exhibit A_

210.

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C, (HepC), and
Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:
2.9.2.1. Therisks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

29.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to ali clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department’'s Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as the sole reason for discharging clients
from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but are not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Cantractor initials
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2.14.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initiais
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2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skilis coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this Contract, which shall include, but is not limited to, behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice, in accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility
Rules, Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation. These
should include, but are not limited to:

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC).

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

Page 6 of 9 Date 9'9 _{ b
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2.15,

2.16.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs andfor LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) ful-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.6. One (1) directorfexecutive director.

The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Heaith
Epidemiologist in order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of sacial determinants of health and other public health and community
health indicators.

The Contractof shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIW\' B & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department,
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.2. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.2.4.Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.
2.17.3. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.4. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

2.17.4.1. Adult and infant Cardiopuimonary Resuscitation (CPR)
2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxone.
2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.4.4. Universal precautions (for what?) L

Hape on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials J L
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2.18. The Conftractor shall ensure services in this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shali:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.19. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting v '
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1.  Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services in
the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall attempt to contact 95% of the individuals.on the waiting list
described in Section 2.4.3. at least one time per month.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 8 families in the New
Hampshire region.

5.2. The Contractor shall begin outreach activities to publicize contract services no later
than 90 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices identified in Section 2.3.2 to the
Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.4.3 to
the Department every 60 days.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.10.3 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

Hope on Haven Hill, inc. . Exhibit A Contractor Initial\s/)__ !{Zk
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5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings

described in Section 2.10.5 to the Department no later than 60 days after the
contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13 to the
Department no later than December 30, 2016.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Init‘i;}/\/\/
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Hope on Haven Hill, inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials § 1. ﬁ ‘
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Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request ar require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shali be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractars costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; ,
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
pravided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the pravision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the perfarmance of the services and the Cantract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disciosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C ~ Special Provisions Contractor Initials )f\ \/t |
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- -Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein-the covenantsand-conditions contaired in-- ~——~

1.

12,

13.

14.

the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following repaorts at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final repori shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the abligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available ar
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or

- purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,

15.

16.

distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright awnership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocots or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shali not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an arder or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shalt be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregaing requirements, the
Contractar hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with Jocal building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civit Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. if the recipient receives $25,000 or mare and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEQP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www.ojp.usdojfaboutiocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationa! origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1864, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shalt apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights

and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.808.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Reguiation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain heaith care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials J ,Lt 1
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~ 194 ~Provide to DHHS an annua! scheduts identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and~—
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPQOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to efigible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract. '

UNIT: For each service that the Contractar is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred ta in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement-and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whale or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

o
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= o —CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-

" contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shali be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
128 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohnibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance praograms; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit O - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initiam.

Workplace Requirements
CUDHHS/110713 Page 10of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
' Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 catendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
{aw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
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e o CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING - - . e

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title (V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. Ifany funds other than Federa! appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and con_tracts under gljants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penaity of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

R e e et — LA LU AL B -A- A4 —LAL_L5_d-00

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The antractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's

representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

CU/DHHS/110713 Page tof 2 Date

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) -
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstarces.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

"

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Votuntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participantin a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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~~information of a participant is ot required-to exceed that which is nomatly possessed by a prodent—
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participantin a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federa! or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for atherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wilf
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all sclicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
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: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contragtor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor witt comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govemnment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for F aith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G \
Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

~—inthe eventa Federalor State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a findingof — "
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above,

Contractor Name:

Date’ " 1l\_lita'r;\.e: {.AA'@I 0\'& i (€d—0{3

ﬂ)??‘\u Wvedin Branedd, Clhganperson

Exhibit G /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smaking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services 1o children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the impaosition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1.. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

N]22) fMeredchn Hame | CWw\Wm
Dat Name: 2 baiod of Divecters,
Hipe on Howven hill

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke !
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

oo o HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTYACT 0
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portabitity and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning glven such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

"¢ “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation’ shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Heaith
Act. TitleXll, Subtitie D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health -
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health lnformation” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected heaith
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Assaciate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health tnsurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

)

‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Etectronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, inciuding but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Assaciate;
t. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
18 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Assaciate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | . Contractor {nitials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit

"~ Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity hias éxhaustedall  ~
remedies.

€. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification,

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

32014 Exhibit! Contractor Initials\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

32014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PH! to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHJ available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PH!
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business, j ‘ !

Exhibit t Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act 3
Business Assaciate Agreement
Page 4 of 6 Dateq I 99'“0



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Assdciate maintains such PHI. Tf Covered Entity, iri its sole discretion, reguires thatthe™
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Assaciate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit [, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

o Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PH! provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials § S \ kt;

Health [nsurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement ) l(p
Page 5 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

M Hpe. on Hawrenddrl]

The State Name of the Contractor

Ve~ A Y

Signature of Authorized Representative

ture of Authorized Representative

Ko S o Meceditih Havae \

Name of Adthorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Y ec Ao C iy @b‘ﬁn - Ooand pf D;(ZC‘}‘OYS
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Tz |0 01221l
Date ' ' Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

"7 "CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,00C or mare. {f the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOENO LN A

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the pravisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:
2]k Maoediin Hamel

Date N.am.e: C/(QJ/\ - ‘Lm//‘l)omﬁ( o .
Title: kaiﬁgif)/ﬁmw o Howen hil|

Exhibit | — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials .
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance N P
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Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: (& (O( IELCAOY

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business ar arganization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X ___NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports fited under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: . Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor initials s( ) QSL S

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance )
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #2”) dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Families in Transition
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a place of
business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on September 21, 2016 (#11) and amended by an agreement
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation without extending the
completion date of the contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to
amend the contract as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $499,207 from
$499,207 to read: $998,414.

CA/DHHS/100213
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

£/2/17 W

Date Terry Smith '
Director

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

R i),
June 2, 2017 [ f
Date Namle: Maureen Béauregard “ -
Title: President
Acknowledgement:
State of New Hampshire , County of Hillsborough on June2, 2017

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
- that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(B g, ChonsiCost

Name and Title of N&tary or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

CA/DHHS/100213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFWE ATTORNEY GENERAL
t/(/@{[ﬂ W

Date %Ee: Wi@)

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213



State of Nefw ?ﬂampire
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed May 13, 1994. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concemed, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13" day of April A.D. 2016

2N

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Dick Angnost , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Families in Transition
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __June 2, 2017
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 2 day of __June , 2017

{Date Contract Signed)
4, Maureen Beauregard is the duly elected President

{Name of Contract Signatory) Tntie of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

ﬁ

(Signature of the Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Hilisoborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 day of _June , 2017,

By Dick Anagnost

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) ‘ @(/
73 J«u

{Notary Pub’(c!‘@stqce of the Peace)

MNOTARY BRals
‘ : RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Commission Expires Qctober 1R, 2018

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oaiziraoty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Families in Transition, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2016 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2016, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2015 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 22, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2015 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the consolidating
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2016, and the related consolidating statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Berry Dirn MVl f Farbn, L4

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 29, 2017



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Funds held as fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves

Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity

Property and equipment, net
Development in process

Other assets, net

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entity
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets
Unrestricted - controlling interest
Unrestricted - noncontrolling interest

Total unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2016 2015
$ 773,336 $ 1,027,626
91,897 90,123
176,659 30,212
168,406 317,288
35,838 43155
8,208 8,809
42,795 41,302
1,297,139 1,558,515
333,855 331,216
737,887 717,593
2,994 10,435
1,001 1,001
26,990,325 25,441,709
158,991 1,881,561
116,646 129,844
$__29638838 $__30.071.874
$ 204,278 $ 184,407
168,988 203,943
207,932 152,630
91,897 90,123
- 869
48,106 44 665
721,201 676,637
10,831,602 10,594,485
11,552,803 11,271,122
12,862,952 12,946,230
4808111 5,248 340
17,671,063 18,194,570
414,972 606,182
18,086,035 18,800,752
$__29.638,838 $_ 30071874

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2015)

Unrestricted - Unrestncted -
Controlling Noncontroliing Total Temporarily Total Total
Interest Interest Unrestricted Restricted 2016 2015
Revenue and support
Federal, state and other grant support $ 2060623 $ - $ 2060623 §$ 288,829 § 2,349452 $ 2,782,997
Rental income, net of vacancies 1,779,728 - 1,779,729 - 1,779,729 1,762,156
Thrift store sales 733,574 - 733,574 - 733,574 721,821
Public support 291,046 - 291,046 - 291,046 188,524
Tax credit revenue 70,000 - 70,000 - 70,000 192,533
Special events 200,057 - 200,057 - 200,057 135,307
VISTA program revenue 83,649 - 83,649 - 83,649 72,888
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 3,906 - 3.906 - 3,906 (227)
Loss on disposal of assets (28,156) - (28,156) - {28,156) (11,150}
Interest income 29,107 - 29,107 - 29,107 28,833
in-kind donations 22,549 - 22,549 - 22,549 4,970
Forgiveness of debt 131,267 - 131,267 - 131,267 131,267
Medicaid reimbursements 248 815 - 248815 - 248,815 175,366
Other income 74,812 - 74,812 - 74,812 308,696
Net assets released from restrictions 480,039 - 480,039 __(480.039) - -
Total revenue and support 6,181,017 - 6,181,017 _(191.210) 5,989,807 6,493,981
Expenses
Program activities
Housing 5,260,642 - 5,260,642 - 5,260,642 4,839,193
Thrift store 590,896 - 590,896 - 590.896 564,569
Total program activities 5,851,538 - 5,851,538 - 5,851,538 5,403,762
Fundraising 402,696 - 402,696 - 402,696 329,373
Management and general 457,590 - 457 590 - 457,590 418,148
Total expenses 6,711,824 - 6.711.824 - 6711,824 __ 6,151,283
Contribution for long-term purposes 7.300 - 7.300 - 7,300 50,000
Change in net assets (523,507) - (523,507} (191,210) (714,717) 392,698
Ghange in net assets attributable to noncontrolling interest
in subsidiaries 440,229 _(440,229) - = : H
Change in net assets after reclassification of
portion attributable to noncontrolling interest (83,278) (440,229) (523,507) (191,210 (714,717) 392,698
Net assets, beginning of year 12,946,230 5,248,340 18,194 570 606,182 __ 18,800,752 _ 18408,054

Net assets, end of year

$ 12862952 § 4808111 $_ 17671063 $ 414972 §__ 18,086,035

$_18,800.752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2015)

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and
benefits

Other expenses

Advertising

Amortization

Application and permit fees
Bad debts

Bank charges
Consultants
Depreciation

Events

General insurance
Interest expense
Management fees

Meals and entertainment
Membership dues

Office supplies
Participant expenses
Postage

Printing

Professional fees

Rental subsidies
Repairs and maintenance
Staff development
Taxes

Technology support
Telephone

Travel

Utilities

VISTA program
Workers' compensation

Total expenses

Program Activities

Management 2016 2015

Housing Thrift Store  Fundraising and General Total Total
$ 1606761 $ 362595 $ 225084 $ 180,379 $ 2,374,819 $ 2,197,630
161,906 40,273 20,492 16,380 239,051 254,849
119,274 27,257 16,873 13,487 176,891 165,360
1,887,941 430,125 262,449 210,246 2,790,761 2,617,839
15,153 27,540 1,793 1,433 45,919 41,689
13,197 - - - 13,197 15,513
4,915 - - 100 5,015 3,240
32,403 - - - 32,403 19,238
- - - 15,602 15,602 15,307
67,376 3,268 1,186 5,356 77,186 8,316
927,135 9,839 28,280 22,605 987,859 911,306
367 6,726 46,081 - 53,174 40,687
111,344 8,780 495 23,003 143,622 124,620
179,672 660 - - 180,332 203,058
14,679 - - - 14,679 6,886
5,598 224 1,019 815 7,656 4,469
7,522 525 1,419 1,134 10,600 6,909
91,720 8,658 15,812 12,639 128,829 118,425
72,021 190 - 1,812 74,023 61,531
3,493 - 659 527 4,679 6,565
16,466 695 2,993 2,392 22,546 29,837
- - - 127,545 127,545 112,934
223,872 - - - 223,872 137,927
379,011 36,427 7,934 6,342 429,714 409,253
8,989 - 1,695 1,355 12,039 8,536
324,120 2,419 - - 326,539 266,379
55,540 344 10,280 8,217 74,381 59,523
61,540 6,445 9,156 7,319 84,460 70,251
29,417 7,355 5,548 4,435 46,755 50,447
387,242 29,178 - - 416,420 409,871
290,379 - - - 290,379 306,283
49,530 11,498 5897 4713 71,638 84.444
$_5260642 $_ 590896 $__402696 $__457500 $_6.711.824 $ 6,151,283

-5-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2015)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Contribution for long-term purposes
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized (gains) losses on investments
Loss on asset disposal
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Net deposits to reserve accounts
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment in development in process
Acquisition of property and equipment
Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions received for long-term purposes
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payments on long-term debt
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through accounts payable

Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings
Acquisition of development in process through long-term borrowings

Property and equipment transferred from development in process

2016 2015
$ (714,717) $ 392,698
1,001,056 926,819
(7,300) (50,000)
(131,267) (131,267)
(3,906) 227
28,156 11,150
(146,447) 9,771
148,882 (34,478)
7,317 11,432
601 (599)
(1,493) 2,477
{47,979) 20,364
55,302 (7,176)
(869) (1,502)
3,441 (31,700
190,777 1,118,216
(22,933) (47,633)
11,347 -
(156,432) (862,528)
(139,966) (179.852)
(307,984) (1,090.013)
7,300 50,000
37,739 156,083
(182,122) (202,695)
(137,083) 3388
(254,290) 31,591
1,027,626 996,035
$ 773,336 $___1,027,626
$ 13,024 $ -
$ s S 72410
$ 532,638 $ 758,086
$ 1879002 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT or the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Millyard Families Il Limited Partnership (Millyard Il),
located on Market Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; Bicentennial Families Concord Limited
Partnership (Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge
Limited Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and
Family Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester,
New Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization, Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Streets, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard Families 1),
Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing
unit located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire (Dover).

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family OutFITters, LLC (OutFiTters), a limited liability
corporation. OutFITters operates independent thrift stores in Concord and Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Brick Mill House Families I,
Inc. (Brick Mill), Bicentennial Families Concord, inc. (Bicentennial Families), Second Street Family Mill,
Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Brick Mill is a general partner of
Millyard Il, Bicentennial Families is a general partner of Bicentennial, Family Mill is a general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

in 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness, a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through
research, education and advocacy". The activity of this entity is not deemed material and has not been
included in the consolidated financial statements.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control in the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Caodification Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation,
the financial statements of each of the Limited Partnerships’ are required to be consolidated with
the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits, MEH and OutFITters. All significant inter-
entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2015 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on the
existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may
or will be met by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the Organization. The donors of these assets permit the
Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related contributions for general or
specific purposes. The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets as of December
31, 2016 and 2015.

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that
increases those net asset classes. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in the year of the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as unrestricted support,
unless a donor places explicit restriction on their use. Contributions of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted support and
reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the assets are acquired and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential risk
at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Restricted deposits are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for
operating costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for
rental properties as well as certain other social services and programs.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated.

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is
approximately $995,000 and $870,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report any
uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of December
31, 2016 and 2015, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not meet the
more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The Organization
files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to examination by
the federal government for up to three years.

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as a partnership, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

-10-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2016 2015
Land $ 3,112,699 $ 3,112,699
Land improvements 602,600 595,300
Buildings and improvements 30,172,685 27,901,568
Furniture and fixtures 604,164 501,900
Equipment 182,631 324,134
Vehicles 290,475 290,475

34,965,254 32,726,076

Less: accumulated depreciation 7,974,929 7.284 367
Property and equipment, net $__26990,325 $__25441.709

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Organization held $22,254,216 and $22,708,745,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvments, net of accumulated
depreciation, for the purpose of leasing to individuals.

Development in Process

In December 2015, the Organization completed the construction on its Family Place Resource
Center and Shelter through funding received from New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
(NHHFA), Community Development Finance Authority funds and donations. The Organization
began providing services to individuals in January 2016 and placed the facility in service. The
facility houses an expanded family shelter as well as a comprehensive resource center designed to
meet the needs of homeless families and children. The shelter consists of 11 emergency housing
units for families in immediate need of shelter. The services provided at the facility include, but are
not limited to, centralized assessment and referral, hot meals, access to an onsite food pantry,
onsite medical care and therapeutic preschool programming for children. At the time of completion
the Organization had invested approximately $1.8 million in the facility.

In September 2014, a three-family building and land located on Spruce Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire was donated to FIT by the City of Manchester. The property was transferred from FIT to
Housing Benefits. Housing Benefits rehabilitated the project into rental housing for low-income
households. The construction incorporated energy efficiencies to reduce operating costs and help
ensure long-term affordability. In July 2016, this facility was placed into service. At the time of
completion the Organization had invested approximately $595,000 in the facility.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)
4. Line of Credit
The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $100,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,

with a floor of 4%. There was no outstanding balance or activity as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

5. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

N
—
[}]
N
—-
[&)]

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
fuil in January 2033. $ 60,724 $ 64,186

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $990, including interest at 4.55%. The loan is collateralized
by real estate on Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire
and is due and payable in full in February 2019. 123,139 127,772

A vehicle loan on an activity bus payable to New Hampshire Health
and Education Facilities Authority in monthly payments of $525
at 1% annual interest rate. The loan is due and payable in
February 2017. 1,077 7,310

A mortgage loan payable to TD Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including interest at 7.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payabie in full in November 2023. 80,597 90,702

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 235,139 243,224
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

A mortgage note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA, collateralized
by real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1, 2034,

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2034. This is nonrecourse.

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is nonrecourse
and is subordinate to the $85,018 note payable.

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to Merrimack
County, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. The note is due and payable in full in May 2033.

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard Il to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the property or in
May 2031. This loan is nonrecourse.

A mortgage note payable by Millyard Il to NHHFA, collateralized by
real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of $1,729
include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The final
installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032.

A note payable by Millyard |l to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. A payment of interest shall be made annually no
later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of the net cash
flow. In any year where the Debt Coverage Ratio exceeds 1.15
to 1, principal payments shall be made no later than August 1 in
an amount that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio.
All unpaid amounts are due and payable in full on August 1,
2031. This note is nonrecourse.

163,833

85,018

337,720

260,000

449,877

245,315

226,725

159,494

85,018

337,720

260,000

461,696

257,265

226,725
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard Il to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by real estate. Payment of principal is due and payable on
December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse.

mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families | real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027.

second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to
Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA),
collateralized by Millyard Families | real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022.

mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30, 2034.

promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
include principal and interest at 7.71%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill.

promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
QOctober 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse.

mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037.

250,000

230,000

69,998

850,000

462,486

600,000

567,448

250,000

230,000

81,919

850,000

473,244

600,000

568,617
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse.

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and interest at 3.75%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree.

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,775 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021.

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039.

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040.

A privately-financed mortgage note collateralized by property
located at South Main Street in Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principal and interest at
6.25% per annum. The note will be paid in full in September
2031.

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coliateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payabile in fuil in August 2040.

109,090

287,593

119,838

617,613

413,575

364,529

34,628

118,181

300,086

142,347

617,613

419,370

379,138

34,628
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of new cash flow or $4,000
commenced in October 2012 and will continue until the maturity
date in June 2041.

A noninterest promissory note payable from Housing Benefits to

NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security agreement
on Lowell Street real estate. The note will be forgiven 1/15th
annually over the low-income housing tax credit compliance
period which ends in 2026. During 2016 and 2015, $131,267
was recognized as other income in the consolidated statement
of activities.

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,

collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028.

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support

to the Organization for the Hope House (the Project). If the
Project is approved, NHHFA is expected to be the lead lender
on the Project. At the time of closing on the construction loan,
this noninterest bearing note payable will be repaid or
refinanced. If the Project does not proceed to a closing, NHHFA
has indicated it will forgive the loan.

A noninterest mortgage note payable to the City of Manchester

Community Improvement Program, collateralized by real estate
located at 393-395 Spruce Street The note has a borrowing
limit of $500,000. As costs are incurred Housing Benefits will be
reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual payments of the
greater of 25% of net cash flow or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2015. The note is due in full by
October 1, 2045.

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real

estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments of
$1,921 include principal and interest at 3.41%. The note is due
in full by April 2019.

172,022

1,247,031

219,364

13,841

582,808

407,357

176,022

1,378,298

221,428

129,708

416,086
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan is due in September 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle.

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan is due in November 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle.

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045,

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 include principal and
interest at 4.25%. The note is due in full by January 2040.

Less current portion

20,369

30,610

750,000

193,233
11,035,880

204,278

$.10.831.602

25,286

38,595

646,564

197.367
10,778,892
184,407

$10.594 485

e

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2017 $ 204,278
2018 177,292
2019 674,888
2020 177,146
2021 174,492
Thereafter _9.627.784

$11.035.880

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted for the following purposes:

2016 2015
The Family Place - services $ 4858 $ 52,000
The Family Place - development - 140,115
Scholarships 12,264 13,348
VISTA program 58,093 50,623
Housing programs 10,492 8,432
Direct care for clients 169,494 198,460
Community Gardens 42,771 46,204
Grant receivable - time restricted 117,000 97.000

$___ 414972 $___ 606,182

Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $34,176 and $32,880 during the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Housing Action New Hampshire

In 2011, the Organization entered into a Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement with Housing Action New
Hampshire (HANH), an unincorporated association. Authority to manage the programmatic
activities of HANH is vested solely in HANH. The Organization maintains the books and financial
records for HANH in accordance with U.S. GAAP. HANH funds are presented in the Organization's
consolidated statement of financial position as funds held as fiscal agent.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015)

10. Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows as of December 31:

Limited Partner Property 2016 2015
Community Capital 2000 Millyard |l $ 848,610 % 932,812
New Hampshire Housing

Equity Fund, Inc. Bicentennial 264,089 302,918

JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial 263,968 303,031
BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 1,320,087 1,486,889
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 2111.337 2,222,670
$__ 4808111 $___5248340

11. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 29, 2017,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

Millyard Il

During 2016, Millyard Il reached the end of the initial 15-year low-income housing tax credit
compliance period. As a result, Community Capital 2000 (the limited partner) indicated it has
decided to withdraw from Millyard Il and is expected to do so in the first quarter of 2017. It is
management's plan to have Housing Benefits acquire the remaining assets of Millyard II.

Wilson Street Development

The Organization is currently in the process of developing the Manchester Treatment and
Recovery Center (the Center) on the second and third floors of 267 Wilson Street in Manchester,
New Hampshire. Management plans to use the second floor of the building to expand the
Organization's Family Willows Intensive Outpatient Treatment Program and to also provide sober
and recovery housing. This additional space is anticipated to allow the Organization to double the
number of people served with evidence based substance use disorder treatment services. The
Organization plans to rehabilitate the third floor of the building to create substance free recovery
housing for single women who are in the early stages of recovery. Consistent with recent evidence
regarding successful recovery housing programs, women in these units will share living space with
other women in the early stages of their recovery, thereby providing peer support and
accountability to mitigate chances of relapse. Cost of development of the Center is estimated to
range from $3.6 million to $4 million and is expected to be funded from the City of Manchester,
NHHFA, CDFA funds, other grants and donations and additional long-term borrowings.
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Current assets
Cash and cash squivalents
Funds held as fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related party
Other current assets

Totat current assets
Replacement reserves

Reserve cash designated for properties
Related party notes receivable

Accrued interesi receivabie on related party

note
Investments
investment in related entities
Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entities
Other current liabilties
Total cumrent liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities
Net assets
Unrestricted - controlling interest
Unrestricted - noncontrolling interest
Total unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and riet assets

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2016

ASSETS
Families in
Families In Manchester Transition
Transition Operating Limited Housing Famity Emergency Temp ity
Partnerships Benefits OutFiTters Housing Restricted Eiliminations Total
$ 46,905 § 38,800 141211 § 128,535 §$ 1813 § 414972 % - 8 773,336
91,897 - . - - - - 91,897
245259 11,657 9,064 - - - {89,321y 176,659
161,656 - - - 6,750 - - 168,406
7.011 18,347 10,227 21 232 . - 35,838
407 439 30,613 87,039 170,632 525 - (688,040) 8,208
5078 23,829 13,888 - - - - 42795
965,245 124,346 261,428 299,188 9,320 414,972 (777.361) 1,297,138
43,079 186,913 103,863 - - - - 333,855
54,416 381,302 302,169 - - - - 737,887
1,725,799 - - - - - (1,725,799) -
919,191 - - - - - (919.191) -
2,994 - - . - - - 2,994
1,196,347 - 25,052 - - - (1.220,398) 1,001
4,641,647 13,039,082 9,266,994 42,602 - - - 26,990,325
156,371 - 2,620 - - - . 158,991
- 54 683 61,863 - - - - 116,646
$ 9705083 § 13,786 326 10024090 § 341790 $ 9320 $ 414972 § (4642.749) § 29,638 838
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 72454 $ 70,782 53,462 § 7580 § - 3 - 3 - 3 204,278
54,850 134,405 58,485 3,749 6,820 - (89,321) 168,988
135,370 727,878 236,630 20,472 6773 - {819.181) 207,932
91,897 . - - - - - 91,897
49,166 76.101 429,476 120,626 12,671 - {688,040) -
5479 26,001 16,626 - - - - 48,106
409216 1035167 794,679 152,427 26.264 - {1,696.552) 721,201
2147604 6,140,122 4,246 646 23,029 - - (1,725.799) 10,831,602
2,556,820 7175289 5,041.325 175,456 26,264 - (3,422,351) 11,552,803
7,148,269 1,802,926 4,982,765 166,334 (16.944) . {1,220,398) 12,862,952
- 43808111 - - - - - 4808111
7,148,269 6.611,037 4,982.765 166,334 (16.944) - {1,220,398) 17,671,063
- - - - 414972 - 414972
7,148,269 6611037 4.982.765 166,334 (16,944) 414972 {1,220 398) 18,086,035
s 9705089 § 13,786 326 10.024.090 § 341790 $ 9320 $ 414972 $ (4642749) $ m
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Revenue and support

Federal, state and other grant
support

Rental income, net of vacancies
Thrift store sales
Public support
Tax credit revenue
Special events
Property management fees
VISTA program revenue
Unrealized gains on investments
Loss on disposal of assets
Interest income
in-kind donations
Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimbursements
Other income
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support
Expenses
Program activities
Fundraising
Management and general
Total expenses

Excess {deficiency) of revenue
and support over expenses

Contribution for iong-term purposes

Change in net assets

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Families In Manchester
Transition Limited Housing Family Emergency Unrestricted Temporanly
Operating Partnerships Benefits OutFITters Housing Eliminations Total Restricted Total
$ 2023202 $ 63,154 § 151,491 § - $ 132337 % (309,561) $ 2,060,623 $ 288829 $ 2349452
274,434 977,708 596,694 - 10,033 {79,140} 1,779,729 - 1,779,729
- - B 733,574 - - 733,574 - 733,574
288,113 - - 2,933 - - 291,046 - 291,046
70,000 - - - - - 70,000 - 70,000
200,057 - - - - - 200,057 - 200,057
569,876 - - - - (569,876) - - -
83,649 - - - - - 83,649 - 83,649
3,906 - - - - - 3,906 - 3,906
(188) (558) an - (27,393) - (28,156) - (28,156)
96,059 237 581 - - {67,770) 29,107 - 29,107
22,549 - - - - - 22,549 - 22,549
- - 131,287 - - - 131,267 - 131,267
248,815 - - - - - 248,815 - 248,815
75,340 22131 11,071 8.462 27,049 (69,241) 74,812 - 74812
480,039 - - - - - 480,039 (480,039) -
4,435 851 1.062,672 891,087 744,969 142,026 (1,095,588 6,181,017 {191.210) 5,989,807
3,412,887 1,469,639 1,131,022 713,592 203,542 (1,079,144) 5,851,538 - 5,851,538
402,696 - - - - - 402,696 - 402,696
398847 33,305 24712 16,670 500 (16.444) 457,590 - 457,590
4214430 1,502,944 1,155,734 730,262 204,042 (1,095 ,588) 6,711,824 - 6,711,824
221,421 (440,272) (264,647) 14,707 (62,016) - (530,807) (191,210) (722,017)
- - 7.300 - - - 7,300 - 7.300
3 221421 $__(440272) $___ (257.347) § 14707 $ 62.016) $ - § (623.507) $ (191,210) $ (714.717)
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidating Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Program Activities

Families In Manchester Management

Transition Limited Housing Family Emergency and

Qperating Partnerships Benefits QutFiTters Housing Eundraising General Eliminations Total

Salaries and bensfits
Salaries and wages $ 1185707 $ - 8 323031 § 362595 $ 98,023 $ 225084 § 180,378 § - § 2374819
Employee benefits 108,661 - 47,808 40,273 5,337 20,492 16,380 - 239,051
Payroli taxes 89,466 - 22.480 27,257 7.328 16,873 13,487 - 176,891
Total salaries and benefits 1,383,834 - 393,419 430,125 110,688 262,449 210,246 - 2,790,761
Advertising 15,153 - - 27,540 - 1,793 1,433 - 45,919
Amortization - 6,673 6,524 - - - - - 13,197
Appilication and permit fees - 2,755 2,160 - - - 100 - 5,015
Bad debts 11,456 7,738 13,209 - - - - - 32,403
Bank charges - - - - - - 15,602 - 15,602
Consuitants 61,901 - 2,691 3,268 2,784 1,186 5,356 - 77.186
Depreciation 149,952 479,691 289,197 9,839 8,295 28,280 22,605 - 987,859
Events - - 367 6,726 - 46,081 - - 53,174
General insurance 29,922 41,671 30,199 8,780 9,552 485 23,003 - 143,622
Interest expense 68,682 130,476 48,284 660 - - - (67.770) 180,332
Management fees 75,448 228,235 260,872 - B - - (549,876) 14679
Meals and entertainment 5,403 - - 224 185 1,019 815 - 7.656
Membership dues 7,522 - - 525 - 1,419 1,134 - 10,600
Office supplies 83,843 2,542 4,682 8,658 653 15,812 12,639 - 128,829
Participant expenses 44,763 165 - 190 27,093 - 1,812 - 74,023
Postage 3,493 - - - - 659 527 - 4,679
Printing 156,870 - 596 685 - 2,993 2,392 - 22,546
Professional fees - - - - - - 127,545 - 127,545
Related entity expenditures 633,095 - (314,293) 60,000 - - - (378,802) -
Rent - - - 62,696 - - 16,444 (78,140) -
Rental subsidies 223,872 - - - - - - - 223,872
Repairs and maintenance 42,070 184,979 156,225 36,427 16,737 7,934 6,342 (20,000) 429,714
Staff development 8,989 - - - - 1,695 1,355 - 12,039
Taxes 64,147 161,638 95,166 2,419 3,169 - - - 326,539
Technology support 54,509 218 321 344 492 10,280 8,217 - 74,381
Telephone 48,549 791 8,074 6,445 4,126 9,156 7.319 - 84,460
Travel 28,417 - - 7.355 - 5,548 4,435 - 46,755
Utilities 31,510 219,907 119,716 29,178 16,109 - - - 416,420
VISTA program 288,219 2,160 - - - - - - 290,379
Workers' compensation 31,268 - 13,613 11,498 4.649 5897 4713 - 71,638
Total expenses $ 3412887 $ 1 469& $ 1 131% $ 713 59_2 3 20?£4_g $ 402696 § 4%0_?& $w $m
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Peter Mennis
VP of the NH Commercial Banking Division, NBT Bank
Board member since 2015

Mary Ann Aldrich
Clinical Director of Community Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester
Board member since 2015

Alex Anagnost
Director of Philanthropy/Project Manager, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2015

Kelly Mulholland
SVP, Business Banking Regional Director, New England, Santander Bank, N.A.
Board member since 2016

Heather Whitfield
Vice President, Commercial Lending, People’s United Bank
Board member since 2016

Wayne McCormick, CFP
First Vice President- Investments, Wells Fargo Advisors
Board member since 2016

Helen Davies
Director of Community Relations, Southern New Hampshire University
Board member since 2016

Scott W. Ellison
Partner, COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, plic
Board member since 2016

Glynis Citarelli
Owner/Photographer/Creative Designer, SweetShot Photography, LLC
Board member since 2016

AnnMarie French
Communications Manager, NH Fiscal Policy Institute
Board member since 2016

Kyle Battis
NH Strategic Marketing, President
Board member since 2017

Rev. 3/03/2017 RS



Stephanie Allain Savard, LICSW

Licensure and Education:

New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, #941, April,
2000.

Masters in Social Work, Boston University, 1996.

Bachelor of Arts — Honors in Psychology, Keene State College, 1992.
Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency, Keene State College, 1992.
Boston University Workshop-Based Trauma Certificate, 2006.

Low Income Housing Tax Credit Certified Credit Compliance Professional
(C3P), 2000.

Professional Experience:
Vice-President, Families in Transition, Manchester, NH, 1/97 — Present.

Oversight of clinical department and all supportive services programming
within agency, including case management, therapeutic services,
employment & training services, youth programming and specialized
programming. Oversee and manage treatment and supportive services for a
program capacity of 150+ homeless families and individuals to ensure that
consistent and quality clinical services are provided. Oversight of 135+ units
of affordable housing to ensure quality and safe housing for all tenants.
Provide administrative and clinical supervision to all licensed clinicians,
masters and bachelor level clinician & case managers. Provide oversight to
the Property Administration Department, including management of all
funding requirements for each property, including Low Income Housing Tax
Credits, HOME, Housing and Urban Development, CDBG, etc.

Assumes responsibilities and decision-making for agency in the absence of
the President. Assist President on personnel issues and in oversight of
agency and strategic planning.

Provide therapeutic services to participants of program, including
participation in participant team meetings. Co-facilitate support groups on
various issues, including self-esteem, co-dependency, Relational/Cultural
Theory, trauma and relationships.

Families in Transition Board of Directors Programs and Supportive Services
Committee Member and assist in Board of Director meetings.

Member of the Manchester Continuum of Care, 10/00 — Present; Community
Awareness Committee Chair 2003/2004; 2006 — Present.

Counselor/Family Service Worker, NFI Midway Residential Shelter, Manchester,
NH, 1993 - 1996.

Supervised 15 adolescent males utilizing behavior management and normative
culture techniques.



Supervised all shifts and summer activity program; Conducted family
assessments and counseling,.

MSW Clinical Intern, CASPAR Emergency Service Center, Cambridge, MA,
1995-1996.

Provided assessments, individual and group therapy to homeless substance
abusers in early recovery.

Developed a resource manual of services for client referral and assisted in
creating a program brochure.

MSW Clinical Caseworker Intern, WorkSource of Work, Inc., Quincy, MA, 1994-

1995.

Provided case management, counseling, and crisis intervention to consumers
with psychiatric disabilities in a vocational rehabilitation workshop.
Developed and co-facilitated support groups.

Developed and facilitated a pre-employment program for consumers
transitioning into community work.

VISTA Volunteer, Center for Human Services, Seattle, WA, 1992-1993.

Developed, recruited, and supervised a volunteer program for multiple
programs and departments.

Diversity Committee Member; Assisted in agency fundraising and grant
writing; designed and marketed public relation materials; assisted in
coordinating Board of Directors and chairing Board committees.

Professional Affiliations and Volunteer Experience:

Lazarus House Transitional Housing Advisory Council, Lawrence, MA, 2004
- Present.
Board of Directors of the NH Coalition to End Homelessness, 12/00 - 2002.

Awards & Professional Memberships:

National Association of Social Workers, Member 1996-Present; NH Chapter
Board of Directors, Vice-President 2006 — Present.

Union Leader and Business Industry Association “40 Under 40 Leaders of
New Hampshire, 2004

NH Homeless Service Providers Award, Office of Homeless and Housing
Services, 2003.



Meghan E. Shea

OBJECTIVE

Uilize the skills have I attained from my academic and professional training to secure a position
providing therapeutic services to individuals and families in need.

EDUCATION
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 2012
Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor September 2010
Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010

*  Graduate May 2010 with an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program
*  Special topic course include: Individual and Family Therapy

Bachelor of Ast, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006

*  GPA3.37 - cum laude
»  Special topic courses include: Numerous courses on Substance Use and Family Therapy

WORK EXPERIENCE

Program Manager

Families in Transition: Family Willows Substance Use and Trauma Treatment Center
August 2013 to Present

Provide clinical oversight of intensive outpatient program staff.

Management of quality treatment and outcomes

Owersight of electronic health record and approprate documentation

Maintain ethical and confidential programming

Oversight of program revenue and marketing for treatment program

Provide clinical supervision to clinical and program staff.

Transition program from grant funded to third party billing.

Therapist
Bedford Family Therapy January 2013 to Present
*  Provide individual, couples and family therapy utilizing models and best practices.
* Participate in weekly clinical staff meetings to address issues and collaborate regarding
mutual clients.
*  Facilitate alcohol and drug assessments.

Clinician May 2010 to Present
Families in Transition: Family Willows Substance Abuse and Trauma Treatment Center

»  Provide individual therapy utilizing models and best practices.

»  Facilitate daily therapeutic groups in an Intensive Outpatient Program utilizing the Seeking
Safety Curriculum, Living in Balance, Dialectical Behavioral Therapy, TCU mapping and
the Matrix Model.

*  Participate in weekly clinical staff team meetings and weekly LADC peer group to address
issues and collaborate regarding mutual participants.

» Facilitate therapeutic assessment and alcohol and drug assessment for incoming
participants using the GAIN and ASI assessments.

=  Supervisor of associate, bachelor and master level social work and community mental

health students.



* Provided appropriate interventions for 24 hour emergency on-call services.
»  Facilitate therapeutic assessments

Treatment Coordinator June 2006 to May 2010
Families in Transition

*  Provided case management and support services to homeless families and individuals

*  Facilitated groups on budgeting, organization and self improvement skills

* Researched and coordinated referrals to community agencies

* Provided appropniate interventions for 24 hour emergency on-call services

*  Parucipate in weekly supervision for LADC licensure

MSW Intern May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford Counseling — Mental Heath Center of Greater Manchester
*  Conduct intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop comprehensive psycho-social
assessments to include diagnosis
= Provide therapeutic intervention services to twenty-two individuals using client specific
therapeutic interventions
» Artend therapeutic workshops pertaining to duel-diagnosis, behavioral health and client
dniven treatment planning

INTERESTS AND ACTIVITIES

NH Providers Association- Board Member ' July 2014 -Present

Participant of the Homeless Health Care Advisory Board June 2012 — December 2014
CONNECT Suicide Prevention and Postvention Facilitator June 2011 — Present
Volunteer Varsity Field Hockey Coach August 2002 to 2009

Manchester Central High School - Manchester, New Hampshire
»  Coach high school girls in field hockey skalls

»  Facllitate group discussions, encourage participation, and instruct field hockey workouts
and play strategies

REFERENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



Jessica Fritz

Profile

Community Mental Health Counselor specializing in children and families with an interest in trauma work. Responsible
self-starter who communicates well and is dedicated to improving the well-being of clients. Comfortable working
autonomously or in a team-based setting.

Professional Experience

Families in Transition, Manchester, New Hampshire
Therapist, Open Doors Program February 13, 2017 - present

Perform intakes and assessments for new clients

Carry small case load

Provide weekly psychotherapy with adult women enrolled in program working on substance use recovery
and mental illness

Complete treatment plan and progress notes for assigned case load

Experience with WITS

Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Manchester, New Hampshire
Child and Family Therapist, FITT (Family Intensive Therapeutic Treatment Team) December 7, 2015 ~ February 2,

2017

Carried case load of 24-27

Carried small case load of CPP (Child Parent Psychotherapy) clients/families

Provided case management

Provided weekly psychotherapy (individual and family) based on the needs of the family

Completed individual service plan, progress notes, quarterlies and all necessary paperwork with assigned
case load

Experience with EMR (Avatar)

Experience with eligibility, CANS and CAFAS

Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconia, New Hampshire
Child and Family Therapist November 2014 — February 13, 2015

Performed intakes and assessments for new clients

Carried a small case load

Completed individual service plan, progress notes and assessments with assigned case load
Experience with EMR (Essentia)

Experience with eligibility and CANS

Families in Transition, Manchester, Nevw, Hampshire
Chinica! Intern September 2011 - May 2012

Assisted in the therapeutic preschool (ages 3-5)

Assisted in the therapeutic afterschool program (ages 5-18)

Conducted play therapy with youth participants

Performed intake assessments for applicants enrolling in the program

Completed case plans, observations, progress notes, and assessments with case load

The Upper Room Family Rescurce Center. Derry, New Hampshire
Clinical Intern June 2011 - August 2011

Assisted with Teen Information for Parenting Success (TIPS) providing services to pregnant teens or parents
under the age of 23

Co-facilitator of URParents Support Group providing weekly support for parents of teenagers

Co-facilitator of Parents of Tweens Support Group providing weekly support for parents of tweens

Assist with individual client intake for Greater Derry Family Outreach (GDFO) which provides short-term in-
home family support, education and counseling



¢ Assisted with the Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion Program (GDJD): attending weekly meetings to develop
teen contracts and partake in exit interviews and completing necessary referral forms during teen contract
meetings for their case folders.

+ Assisted with the Community Service Learning Opportunity (CSLO) providing supervised community service
opportunities for youth

Education
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY, MANCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
M.S., CMHC Jan 2014

e  Specialization in Children and Families
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY, MANCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Bachelor of Arts, Child Psycholegy, May 2010

Trainings/Certificates
e  Children of Trauma and Structured Sensory Interventions
Brazelton Touchpoints Training
Using Mindfulness-Based Strategies to Promote Recovery from Addiction
DWI Symposium: Care Management and Clinical Services
DWI Symposium: Navigating the Criminal, Civil & Clinical Systems
Families In Recovery
CPP (Child Parent Psychotherapy)
Making Mindfuiness Stick
Family Therapy
CPI (Crisis Prevention Intervention)
ASAM Training
CPR/First Aid (2017)



Autumn N alll

= Relationship Management = Customer Service *  Analytical & Problem Solving
* Mediation Skills * Evemt Planning Skalls
* CPR/First Aid Centified *  Child Development = Curriculum Development
* Research *  Human Resources *  Nutritional/Exercise Science
»  Public Speaking » 55WPM = Microsoft Office Advanced
Skill
WORK EXPERIENCE

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION- TREATMENT COORDINATOR- FEB 2017- PRESENT
e Partner with HA’s around case management needs for the family

s Bring to medical appointments

s  Connect woman to the substance abuse community (meetings)

e  Support families with all needed applications and paperwork around health care needs
¢  Running Groups (examples budget and life skills)

Residential Specialist HCRS- April 2015- January 2017 Per diem
o  Working with clients through crisis
Sitting in on appointments with clients
Assisting clients with daily ADLS
Purchasing food for the residential house
Preparing meals for the clients
¢ Connecting clients to resources
GRrouprs RECOVER TOGETHER- CLINIC COORDINATOR ArriL 2016- February 2017
Keene NH
e  Working with patients and insurance companies
Coordinate Schedules
Order supplies for the office
Manage all office income
Work with patients and refer to outside agencies as needed.
Organize the office and supplies
Schedule intakes
Manage the front office
Perform UA on patients
e  Practice HIPPA
GROUND WORKS DROP IN CENTER - RESOURCE COORDINATOR ApriL 2015- APRIL 2016
BRATTLEBORO VT
Connect Clients to the community
Run the Christmas Toy Campaign
Manage the front office
Answer and direct phone calls
Sort mail
Accept and manage all incoming donations
Monitor and facilitate the cleaning crew

EDUCATION



Autumn Nall

National Exercise Trainers Association
Pilates Mat Certification
Personal Trainer Certfied

Masters of Human Services
Capella Unversity, Minneapolis, MIN
Date of Graduation: Sept 2011

Bachelors of Arts, Sociology
Concentration in Women’s Studies
Keene State College, Keene, NH

2012-2013

2010-2011

2006-2009



Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

Education

BosToN UNIVERSITY, TYNGSBORO, MA SEPTEMBER 2006-MaAy 2009
Masters of Social Work

RIVIER COLLEGE, NASHUA, NH SEPTEMBER 2004-May 2006

Bachelor of Arts in Human Development
e Minor in Social Work
NEw HAMPSHIRE TECHNICAL INSTITUTE, CONCORD, NH SEPTEMBER 2002- May 2004
Associates Degree in Early Childhood Education
Licenses
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker in Massachusetts and New Hampshire
Experience
PSYCHOTHERAPY ASSOCIATES OF NORTH READING, NORTH READING, MA JuLy 2013- PRESENT
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker
e  Provide individual and family counseling to children, adolescences, and adults
»  Provide service to adolescences during the tranisition into college and adulthood
e Offer art and play therapy services to children ages 3-15 years old
e Conduct psychotherapy assessments and formulate treatment plans
FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, MANCHESTER, NH
Child and Family Therapist OcTOBER 2016-PRESENT
e  Provide in-home family therapy
¢  Supporting families through substance use, trauma and homelessness
e  Facilitiate therapeutic play groups and parenting groups
Program Manager/ Child and Family Therapist OcTOBER 2009- OcTOBER 2012
¢ Provide trauma-informed therapeutic services to homeless children and families

¢ Manage the trauma-informed therapeutic preschool and afterschool program

e Provide supervision to clinical staff and early educators whose responsibility levels vary

e Complete psychosocial assessments, develop treatment plans, and DECA/BERS assessment tools

e  Provide individual therapy, family therapy, parenting workshops, staff trainings, group therapy and crisis intervention
ELLISs MEMORIAL, BosTON, MA OcTOBER 2012- MAY 2014
Clinical Supervisor

e  Oversee clinical services for children being offered in the agency, including supervision to clinical staff and interns
e Provide therapeutic services to children and families enrolled in Ellis’s educational programming
e Enroll and oversee services for children that have open cases with the Department of Children and Families
« Offer in-house trainings and on-going support to early childhood providers
¢ C(Create and implement behavior management strategies to ensure success for children within the programs
MOORE CENTER SERVICES INC., MANCHESTER, NH NovEMBER 2008- OcToBER 2009
Case Manager, Children Services
e  Assist families with children diagnosed with developmental disabilities and participate in crisis intervention planning
e  Oversee and manage child budget to provide services through the In Home Support program
e  Attend children’s individual education plan (IEP) meetings and collaborate with school systems on behalf of children’s
education
EASTER SEALS RESIDENTIAL FACILITY CO-OCCURRING UNIT, MANCHESTER, NH SEPTEMBER 2(008- May 2009
Master Level Clinical Intern
o  Participate in individual and group therapy with adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
e  Develop curriculum for group therapy
¢ Involvement with drug court and the New Hampshire court system
e Participated in training for Therapeutic Crisis Intervention
HiGH PLAIN ELEMENTARY, ANDOVER, MA SEPTEMBER 2007 - MaY 2008
Master Level Clinical Intern
¢ Led individual, group, and family therapy sessions employing a variety of techniques
¢ Provided emotional and behavioral support to clients with autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, GAS and depression
s Served as liaison between staff and families on mental health issues and child development
Trainings
Certified trainer in Suicide Prevention through NAMI {National Association of Mental Iliness) 2010
Certified trainer of Dr. Brazelton Touchpoints child development model (Harvard University) 2011
Certified Disaster Case Manager Supervisor (Catholic Charities) March2014
Faculty member participating on a team with mental health professionals, to help implement the Trauma-Informed
Early Education and Care Systems Breakthrough Collaborative. Created and implemented trauma-informed curriculum
training to early childhood educators. (BostoN PuBLic HEALTH COMMISSION, BosTON MA) AucusT 2013-SEPTEMBER 2014



Sheila Cavanaugh

Sheila.cavanaugh12@gmail.com

Areas of « Direct Support Professional . .
Special « Non-profit experienced
pecialty or Customer service . Education
Interest ) ) . . h
. Experience with the disabled » Community Outreac
community, domestic and sexual - Fund Rmsmg
assault victims « Artand Music
+ Event Planner » Cooking
+ Club organizer
« Social work (in general)
Education High School Diploma.

Nashua High Schaal North. Nashua. NH

Bachelor’s Degree in Sociology
(Minors: Women Studies)
Colby-Sawyer College, New London, INH.

September 2008 - June, 2011

September 2011 — May, 2015



Experience/
References

STARTING
FROM PAST
TO PRESENT

American Red Cross (Volunteer 2009-2012) (Nashua, NH location)

. Awarded one of the youngest CPR trainers in the region

+ Taught a few CPR/First aid and Infant care classes.

» Event planning

« One event our small group hosted raised 900 dollars in one night to
donate to Haiu refuge efforts. Other fundraisers we hosted raised
hundreds of dollars towards Measles and Malaria awareness and
prevention programs.

Lil’ Iguana’s (Volunteer) (Owner: Jim Tomaszewski, 603-930-4642)

« This is a non-profit child safety foundation

« I'volunteered here periodically from 2008-2011.1 collected donation
money, was a mascot, and learned how to work with a non-profit.

Dormino’ Pizza (Customer Service repetitive, cook, delivery driver

6038860202, 419 Amherst Street Nashua, NH, 03060. Manager: Chris

Claar)

. Started at 17 (6 years). Have done all positions.

+ Acquired customer service and management skills.

» I have learned how to act professionally when finding solutions to
complaints.

Bridges: Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault Program (Internship

June-August, 2014. Contact Lisa Legro at Directservice@@bridges.org
» Nashua NH.)

. Crisis intervention certificate
« About 150-200 hours spent of training, shadowing and on-call crisis
intervention.

“VOX” Board Member (Community Outreach) and Planned

Parenthood Volunteer

« Planned Parenthood club at Colby-Sawyer College which was directly
linked to Planned Parenthood of Concord, NH.

« Worked as a representative on phone-banks during the elections.

» Cold - Calls

. Event panning

Campaign Work (Volunteer): Visibility Cootdinator for Nashua

o Organized Standouts and did phone banking for a presidential
candidate. Helped coordinate workshops. Worked closely with
former State representatives (Sylvia Gale, Jan Schmidt of
Nashua).

Direct Support Professional at Granite Bay Connections,
Manchester, New Hampshite. Supervisor: Augustas Ansah
o  Medication Cerufied in New Hampshure.
o Restraint Certified (CPI).
e CPR/First Aid certified ( Amernican Heart Association)
Cook, Clean, take them to appointments and advocate.

Program Aide at Families in Transition, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Supervisor: Kelly Paquette. (603)641-9441.
o Crisis intervention
¢ Community building
o  Experience with Multi-client, Honey well and TightVINC security
camera systems.

2009-2012

2008-2011

2010-2016

2014-2014

2012-present

2015-2016

3/2016- 11/2016

11/2016 - Present



Professional/ Personal References

« Sharron Wallace. Co-Worker at GBC. 603-892-4827

+ Chnistopher Claar, Dominos Manager 603-886-0202

. Sylvia Gale, Nashua, NH. Former State Representative. SylviaGale4@ comcast.net
. Katie Hobday, Manchester, NH. Worked together at Dominos. 603-204-8628

« Amanda Gagnon. Robertsdale, Alabama. Sister. 603-557-0760

More About . Proficient skills with Microsoft “Word” and “Excel”. Have done data entry.
Me + Determined, hardworking, and energetic!
« Professional, creative, and love to stay busy.

« I enjoy learning about people and culture; I am respectful, mindful, and appreciative of the differences each
person has and want everyone in the work environment to grow together positively.

« My mission is to assist and empower people.

« I 'want to create solutions to problems in my community.



Rachael E. Rhodes

EDUCATION

Northeast Catholic College 2012- 2016
Bachelor of Liberal Arts Degree and Concentration in Political Sciences

EXPERIENCE

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION- Program Aide, Manchester, NH March 2017- Present

e Maintains activities schedule and staff schedules

e Monitors building for safety and general well-being of participants

® Available for participants in times of crisis

e Coordinates with other FIT staff for scheduling purposes, activities, etc.
THE LOCAL- WAIT STAFF, Warner, NH August 2015- Present

e Assisted customers/ waited on tables/ presented food

® Kept restaurant clean and machines in good working condition

e Responsibly handled money with customers

e Completed any tasks assigned in an organized and effective manner

EXODUS CRY ABOLITION SUMMIT EVENT INTERN, Grandview, MO June - August 2015
e Coordinated Abolition Summit; three day conference on the topic of abolishing human trafficking
e Managed accommodations for guest speakers/guest worship leaders
e C(Created spreadsheets in Google Docs
® Lead Praise and Worship during prayer time in office
e Reached out to attendees; answered inquiries about Abolition Summit; offered assistance to those

traveling

NORTHEAST CATHOLIC COLLEGE RESIDENTIAL ADVISOR, Warner, NH August 2013- May 2014
Assisted the Women'’s Dean in residential activities

Planned and coordinate events for students on-campus

Advised the female student population

Complied with and enforced school policies

NORTHEAST CATHOLIC COLLEGE COLLEGIATE SUMMER PROGRAM, Warner, NH July-August 2013, July-
August 2014
e Planned/coordinated activities on and off of campus for campers, ages 15-18
e Provided a fun, safe environment for campers
e Led campers in activities such as group games, choir, and daily prayer.
e Worked with other Counselors to remain on schedule, problem solve, and entertain/keep track of
campers

NORTHEAST CATHOLIC COLLEGE KITCHEN SUPERVISOR, Warner, NH August 2014- May 2015
e Supervised all kitchen activities performed by students, including food prep, cooking, cleaning, etc.
e Maintained working condition of kitchen machines
® Solved any issues that arose pertaining to meals



e Scheduled kitchen teams
e Found students who missed kitchen duty and gave tasks to them to make up

PERSONAL
e Oldest of five children
e Student of Classical Studies, including Latin and Greek

SKILLS

Microsoft Office

Leadership and organizational skills
Strong interpersonal skills

Networking

Excel in fast-paced, high-stress situations



Chelsea M-ukon

Customer service professional looking to transfer to
ENTRY LEVEL SOCIAL WORK
Organized | Patient | Caring

e Warm and friendly client reception and orientation

e Experienced and adept at identifying, preventing, and resolving clients’ problems in a fast-
paced environment
Calm demeanor helps put clients at ease and de-escalate distressed clients

e Efficient and skilled at keeping accurate records and other administrative tasks

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Elements Massage - Portsmouth, NH 2014-Present
Elements Massage is a studio with over goo members, offering therapeutic and relaxation massage to the seacoast
community.

CLIENT SERVICES SPECIALIST

e Completed client intake and check-out transactions quickly and efficiently.

e Conducted assessments to ensure that each client was paired with the best fit therapist in order to
maintain a high standard of quality and to ensure a positive client experience every time.

e Advised clients on the benefits of regular massage, and helped them to re-book as much as possible.

¢ Resolved client complaints regarding quality, expectations, and billing in a calm manner, fostering an
atmosphere of trust and competence, and helping the studio to grow into one of the top 5 franchise locations
in the country in client satisfaction.

e Input data into database and continually updated client records.

“Chelsea is patient, attentive, and kind; these qualities make her a highly successful client services specialist and
well liked among her peers and clients in the studio.” - Kathryn Bauman, Licensed Massage Therapist

Finesse Pastries - Manchester, NH 2012-2013
Finesse Pastries is a specialty French pastry shop that opened in 2012.
PASTRY CHEF

e Successfully employed time management and multi-tasking skills to prepare concurrently up to 10
different types of high-end pastries within 6 hours each day.

e Assisted the owner by testing and recording results for recipes, kitchen procedures, and overall
efficiency while the business was in its first year.

“Chelsea is a talented, hardworking individual whom I could always rely on to produce a quality product even
while juggling multiple projects at a time.” - Chelsey Erickson, Owner and Head Pastry Chef

Kittery Trading Post - Kittery, ME 2010-2011
Kittery Trading Post is a large retail store that sells outdoor equipment and clothing.
CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE

e Consistently ranked among highest performing customer service representatives with respect to
financial accuracy and minimal errors, while carrying out returns, exchanges, and refunds for high
volume of customers on a daily basis.

e Upheld store policies while striving to satisfy every customer’s needs.



Juniper Hill Inn - Ogunquit, ME  2007-2009
Juniper Hill Inn is a 100+ room hotel in a bustling tourist town in Maine.
FRONT DESK AND RESERVATIONS AGENT

e Was responsible for creating detailed reservations and completing check-in and check-out
procedures.

e Successfully trained new front desk agents while still ensuring a pleasant experience for guests.

e Handled guest complaints and problems alone, and in conjunction with management and
maintenance workers.

e Used discretion to protect guests’ privacy, including personal, contact, and financial information.

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

New Generation — Greenland, NH 2016 — Present
New Generation is a homeless shelter for pregnant women and their children.

¢ Researched grant proposal information.
¢ Assisted with child care for several children under 2 years old.

United Way — Portsmouth, NH
o Trained reader for the K-Ready Readers Program.

SOFTWARE PROFICIENCIES

Microsoft Word, Excel, Scheduling, Client Database

EDUCATION
Began Masters of Social Work (MSW), Summer 2016

B.A. - Linguistics and International Affairs 2006
University of New Hampshire Durham, NH
Graduated Summa Cum Laude
Member of Phi Beta Kappa Honor Society



ALEXANDRA SACKETT

PROFILE

! would like to help create a community that is supportive, collaborative, and compassionate community that
generates opportunity, promotes autonomy, and inspires all members of our community to learn and grow.

EXPERIENCE

Program Aid- Families in Transition- April 2017- present

I am giving assistance to residents and participants. I monitor for safety concerns and create

an environment that is safe, secure and enriching for the families we service.

SHIFT LEADER- HCRS- APRIL 2015-PRESENT
As a shift leader | work with the residential care coordinator to maintain compliance to federal, state, and licensing

regulations. | worked as a team to bring cohesiveness and consistency to all three shifts. | am the point of contact on
second shift for scheduling community outings, home visits, doctor visits, volunteering, school, etc. | supervise six
employees and manage the schedule for any call outs or reconstruction of the schedule when necessary. | am
responsible for documenting in our client system any document ion necessary for HCRS review.

FINANCIAL REPRESENTATIVE, GREAT-WEST RETIREMENT, WALTHAM MA
JAN 2008- APRIL 2012
Covered over 100 miles in territory including city and town entities such as Quincy and Cape Cod and the Islands. |

was the finical representative for the Boston Police department, the Boston Fire Department, EMS, and over 500
participants city wide. Offered Plan sponsored support to over 30 towns and cities with meetings with treasure and
HR. Was available for web support and tech. Stayed attune to financial news, performances, trends, and articles.
Proficient in Microsoft word, excel, power point, dragon transcription.

FINANCIAL REPRESENTATIVE, NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL, BOSTON MA,
MARCH 2004 JAN 2008
Was the financial assistant to one of Boston brokers. Handled time sensitive personal financial information for over

500 clients. Maintained daily outlook calendar including meetings, phone conferences, and travel arrangements.
Completed life, disability and annuity applications while assisting throughout the underwriting process.

CRISIS COUNSELOR, DEARBORN ACADEMY, ARLINGTON MA, AUG 2001~
MARCH 2004
One of two on call crisis counselors for a day school. The children’s ages ranged from age 6-15. There were three

class rooms. The school specialized in smaller classrooms for children with learning, behavioral, social or medical
needs. | attended IEP, intake meetings and private placement, completed behavioral plans for individual and
classrooms, behavioral interventions, teaching problem solving skills, boundaries and social skills.



EDUCATION

FITCHBURG UNIVERSITY- EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION AND ENGLISH
DEGREE, 2000

SKILLS/LICENSES

Have managed and supervised up to ten direct employees. helped manage and maintain a schedule for three shifts,
facilitate groups and activities, maintain required licensing and documentation, CPI, CPR, and First Aid, IPS, Mat, life
accident and health, series 6, 63, CRPC certified.

REFERRALS
Rich Wrase- Residential Coordinator - HCRS
Lysa Mosca- Care Coordinator- HCRS

Pam- Nurse-HCRS

Leah Grant HCRS



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Stephanie Savard COO 85,695 10% 8,320
Meghan Shea Program Manager 64,480 50% 32,240
Jessica Fritz Therapist 59,280 100% 59,280
TBD Therapist 59,280 100% 59,280
Autumn Nall Certified Recovery Support 42,000 100% 42,000

Worker 1
Kristen McGuigan Child & Family Therapist 59,280 100% 59,280
Sheila Cavanaugh Awake Overnight Staff — FT | 24,960 100% 24,960
Amanyda Caron Awake Overnight Staff - FT | 24,960 100% 24,960
Rachael Rhodes Awake Overnight Staff — FT | 24,960 100% 24,960
Chelsea Mukon Awake Overnight Staff — PT | 14,976 100% 14,976

(24 hours/wk)
Alexandra Sackett Awake Overnight Staff — PT 14,976 100% 14,976

(24 hours/wk)
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A: Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

February 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of -becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Govemor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late ltem A), September 7, 2016 (Item #9), and September 21,
2016 (Item #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current
Budget
Greater Nashua Council on 615 Amherst St. 166574-B001 $500,000
Alcoholism Nashua, NH 03063

Hope on Haven Hill, inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-B001 $482,119
Rochester, NH 03867

Families in Transition 122 Market St. 157730-B001 $499,207
Manchester, NH 03101

Total: | $1,481,326

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 31,481,326
Total: $1,481,326
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been
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identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother’s care. These amendments
are no additional cost, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment. However, these
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely to seek help
due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could result in separation from their
children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide
for their families, while addressing participants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic
biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across all services and levels of care. All services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother's care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

» Communication classes

e Anger management classes

» Coping skills

¢ Childbirth education classes

* Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services

« Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfuiness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for one (1) year, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, based upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and
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Executive Council. This amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1)
additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

.

Diregtor
/
‘Muw
li
Approved by:
rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #17) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Families in Transition (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"),
a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 21, 2016 (#11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

MNaoed 7 2017 T {
Date ’ Terry Smith
Director

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

February 22, 2017 /2 I&ﬁzzzgzﬂ f(é224155£4
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard

Title: President

Acknowledgement:

State of New Hampshire , County of Hilisborough on February 22, 2017
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public

Q’ AZ/ My Commission Expires October 16, 2018
(2 )é%% /

Name ahd Title of Notdry or Jfistice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst. / Notary Public

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

= 8 MW”

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

August 24, 2016

£ 2 T £ Q. f
SEG Approved
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan (\];{l //C/'
and the Honorable Executive Council Date 1
State House _
fom # [

Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Families in Transition, (Vendor # 157730-B001), 122 Market Street,
Manchester, NH 03101 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services. These
services include: residential and/or supportive housing, wraparound services to pregnant
and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at or
below the 185% Federal Poverty Level and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in
Strafford County in an amount not to exceed $499,207. This agreement will be effective upon
Governor and Executive Council through June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $499,207
[ Total: $499,207
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one of three vendors statewide
that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment
services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the
mother's care. This is the third of three sole source contracts for these services. The
Governor and Executive Council approved one of the contracts on August 3, 2016 (Late Item
A). It is anticipated that the second contract will appear on the September 7, 2016 Governor
and Executive Council meeting agenda.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
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“treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their-fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funds were transferred in the 2017
budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing the State. Substance abuse is often a
root cause of homelessness. Families in Transition (FIT) is currently working on expanding
their services to better assist the growing need of families facing substance abuse and/or
housing matters. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for
~ children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory
purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work,
and education. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and
removing barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the
larger community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders.

This agreement includes language that allows the Department to renew services for up
to two (2) years upon satisfactory provision of services, continued funding and Governor and
Executive Council approval.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

¢ Anger management classes

¢ Coping skills

¢ Childbirth education classes

¢ Nurturing parenting classes

¢ Lactation services

» Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’s care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 0of 3

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder
treatment services they need.

Area Served:; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

~ s

o

Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by: Ch—
Jeffrey A. Meye
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

Disorders (§S-2017-DFA-01-Opend-03)

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Piecasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Families in Transition

1.4 Contractor Address
122 Market Street
Manchester, NH

1.6 Account Number
05-95-45-450010-6146

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number
(603) 641-9441 X251

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2017 $499.207

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Slgnature

Visssn Rinicrsngedf

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of NH , County of
On 8-15-16

indicated in block 1.12.

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

Hillsborough

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

sty b

My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Jfstice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst. Notary Public

By:

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
A- Date. U570 | 1ok Jewer, Beww Cliy 02
1.16 Approval by the N'H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
By: - \,
Y \/\ 1N Al g “’/L///C/
1.18 Approval by the Governor ang/xecutive Cduncil (ifapplicable)

On:

Page | of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(*Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the-approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. Inthe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials ‘m&

Date 8-15-16



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(*Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and.'or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emofuments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Page 3 of 4 O

Contractor Initials |
Date 8-15-16



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

1S. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
givenin blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor InitialsJ \ ﬁ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4,

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent is employed in which case services can be extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide-basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health insurance.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with the development of program processes, service provision, and
overall program outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DFA to ensure
desired program benchmarks are achieved timely .

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

Families in Transition E xhibit A Contractor Initials h{ k ﬁ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for

Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.9.
1.10.

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department's Sentinel Event Reporting.

The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
1.10.1.4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenrollment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services through
referrals to local support services.

2.1.2. Qutpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.3. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.4. Access to onsite age developmentally appropriate childcare during treatment
and/or age developmentally appropriate childcare when needed.

2.1.5. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.6. Wraparound services.

2.1.7. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's

Families in Transition Exhibit A ContractorlnitialsM_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women's
substance use disorders.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

24.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.
2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

. 2.45.1. Community based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.
2.45.3. Social service agencies.
2.4.5.4, Ethnic community based organizations.

The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.51. |Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-

The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the ability to provide onsite substance use disorder treatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apartments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing. Funding for
Supportive Housing services shall be limited to four (4) months based of
TANF regulations around non assistance categories.

Families in Transition Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘ Eﬁ! f
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Exhibit A

2.6.3.

Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.71.
2.7.2.
2.7.3.
2.7.4.
2.75.

Housing.
Food.

Clothing.
Diapers.

Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1.

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341 full pdf

Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to  children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1.

Families in Transition
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Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises, to assess and

respond. .
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Exhibit A

2.10.

211

212.

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC), and
Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexua! partners and infants.

2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Asses clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as grounds for discharging clients from
services being provided under this contract.

The Contractor shali develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropnate.

The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:
2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

,1v
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Exhibit A

213.

2.14.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.42.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4 3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4 6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse  Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall include medical and behavioral heaith
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice and
must be pursuant with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules,
Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation as well as with
ASAM guidelines around Intensive Outpatient Programs referenced in level 2.1
which can be accessed at http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria.
These shall be applicable staffing for this contract that are referenced in this rule and
should include, but are not limited to:

Families in Transition Exhibit A Contractor initials
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Exhibit A

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcoho! and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board
of Mental Health Licensed Clinician.

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcoho! and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One half time advance registered nurse on staff or by referral

2.14.6. One (1) fulltime individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) half time director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Heaith
Epidemiologist with experience in data collection, surveillance, and evaluation of
social determinants of health and other public health and community health
indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1.
2.16.2.
2.16.3.

Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or
Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department; and

Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

217.1.

217.2.

2.17.3.
2.17.4.

Families in Transition

Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care
is maintained in a state of an emergency.

Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.2.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.
Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:
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2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.17.4.1. Adult and infant CPR.

2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.
2.17.4.4. Universal precautions

The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.18.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible services.

2.18.3. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from sources
including but not limited to

2.18.3.1. Grants from private trusts and foundations
2.18.3.2. Individual and corporate donations
2.18.3.3. Event fundraising

2.18.3.4. Private funding raised through the growth of FiTs two social
entrepreneurial business ventures

The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.19, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1.

The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not imited to:
3.1.1.  Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services in
the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1.

4.2.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than six {6) months after the contract effective date.

The Contractor attempt to contact a minimum of 95% of the individuals on the
waiting list described in Section 2.9.3 are at least one time per month.

Families in Transition Exhibit A Contractor tnitials j i i g
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43.

4.4.

4.5.

The contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled in program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care for their needs.

The contract shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite employment
programming to increase in financial stability and reduce dependence of public
assistance.

The contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

51.

5.2.

5.3.

54.

55.

56.

57.

The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 50 famities in the
Manchester, New Hampshire region.

The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities in
Section 2.4 to the Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract
effective date.

The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from the
contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections, 2.8, 2.17.2.4 and
2.17.4.3 to the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9 to the
Department once every two months.

The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.17.2 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings
described in Section 2.17.4 to the Department no later than 60 days from the
contract effective date.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Afinal payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall inciude all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as weli as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2.  Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials S QEE
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Exhibit C

. 7.3._Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make

such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

9.

10.

Maintenance of Records: |n addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and al!
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and ariginal evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labar time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. it is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the pravisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: Al information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foilowing
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the

maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
. hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,

by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and alt original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15 QOperation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at al! times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and ha? 50 or

\
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~ OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees

17.

18.

19.

with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert. pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ; i\ Q
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL.: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federa! regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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_ REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shali not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

CUDHHS/ 110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace; '

1.3, Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a),

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials\| §562
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and inciuding
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2018
Date

Maureen Beauregard
President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XiX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, foan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under g(ants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Aug 15, 2016

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Date

Narfe. Maureen Beauregar
Title: President

Exhibit € - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

- ... CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)

-determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shatt not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without maodification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F ~ Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials ! '3[ :
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State-antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for fower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date

ame: Maureen Beauregar
Title:  President

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initiat
And Other Responsibility Matters
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAININGTO

' FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Pravisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 CF.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regu'ations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamenta! principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G ]
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposa! (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:  Families in Transition

e

Aug 15, 2016
Date

/

: Maureen Beauregard
Title:  president

Exhibit G
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Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016 /

Date Name:  Maureen Beauregafd
Title:  President

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initialsl iﬂsz
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually {dentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials !Mz
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Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule"” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH ;
Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
il For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PH! in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials M

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 2 of 6 Date 8-15-16



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(3

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officerimmediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Wnether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PSI

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected heaith information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHi in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PH! or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PH|
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assaciate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Exhibit | Contractor Initials M
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Assaciate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shali promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit {. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assaociate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. igg
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e. Seqgregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

w./
a5/
o 7 = /?[ffffz Families in Transition

The State Name of the Contractor

J
il Dapusep oo
Signature of Autho#zed Representative Sidnature of Authorized Representative

e TonNE ¢ Maureen Beauregard
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Boags Cteoy WS President
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
- 25-1 August 15, 2016
Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOENOO AR LN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date

Name: Maureen Beaure§ard

Title: President
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certlfy that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity js; 825360399

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
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